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���������������������������������������������������ǯ�Review Report 
Originally Prepared and Issued in Turkish 

To the Board of Directors of �����
��������������Ç�Ç��������ÇºÇ��������f������ 

Introduction 

We have reviewed the accompanying statement of financial position of Halk 

��������������Ç�Ç��������ÇºÇ��������f�������ȋ����ǲ�������ǳȌ����at 30 September 
2016, the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in 
equity and cash flows for the nine month period then ended and notes to the 
interim financial information. Management is responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of this interim financial information in accordance with Turkish 
Accounting Standards 34 Interim Finan����� ���������� ȋǲ���� ͛͜ǳȌ� ������� ��� ����
������� ���������� ����������� ���� ��������� ���������� ���������� ȋǲ���ǳȌǤ� ����
responsibility is to express a conclusion on this interim financial information based 
on our review. 

Scope of Review 

We conducted our review in accordance with Standard on Review Engagements 
͚͙͘͜ǡ� ǲ������� ��� �������� 	��������� ������������ ���������� ��� ���� ������������
���������������������ǳǤ��������������������������������������������������������������
inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, 
and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less 
in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become 
aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, 
we do not express an audit opinion. 



 

 

 

Conclusion 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the 
accompanying interim financial information is not prepared, in all material respects, in 
accordance with TAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting. 

Emphasis of matter  

As explained in Note 4 to the financial statements, the Company generates significant 
portion of its revenue from its related parties. 
 
 
 
�������ºÇ��Ç��������������������������������������òç���������ǤfǤ 
A member of KPMG International Cooperative 
 
 
 
 
������
ò���­ǡ����� 
Partner  
 
31 October 2016 
G�������ǡ��ò����� 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Additional paragraph for convenience translation to English: 

As explained in Note 2.1, the accompanying financial statements are not intended to 
present the financial position and results of operations in accordance with the accounting 
principles and practices generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than 
Turkey. 
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  Reviewed Audited 
ASSETS Notes 30 September 2016 31 December 2015 
    
CURRENT ASSETS  239,955,774 144,495,869 
Cash and cash equivalents 5 75,371,002 16,436,458 
Trade receivables 7 13,229,605 10,076,498 
- Due from related parties 4 -- 4,649,752 
- Other  13,229,605 5,426,746 
Inventories 8 137,836,180 97,964,900 
Prepaid expenses 16 190,602 146,252 
- Related parties 4 174,711 52,219 
- Other  15,891 94,033 
Current tax assets  628,068 79,076 
Other current assets 16 12,700,317 19,792,685 
- Related parties 4 725 214,083 
- Other   12,699,592 19,578,602 
    
NON-CURRENT ASSETS  864,138,170 830,219,908 
Trade receivables 7 39,394,752 19,033,739 
- Other  39,394,752 19,033,739 
Investment property 10 790,294,759 789,101,181 
Prepaid expenses 16 13,729,012 7,547,569 
- Related parties 4 153,640 -- 
- Other  13,575,372 7,547,569 
Tangible assets 11 461,890 587,723 
- Furniture and fixtures  461,890 587,723 
Intangible assets 12 370,059 530,242 
- Computer software  370,059 530,242 
Other non-current assets 16 19,887,698 13,419,454 
- Other  19,887,698 13,419,454 
    
TOTAL ASSETS  1,104,093,944 974,715,777 
    
LIABILITIES    
    
SHORT-TERM LIABILITIES  33,127,363 52,951,759 
Current portion of long term borrowings 13 3,396,733 3,396,983 
- Borrowings from related parties 4 3,396,733 3,396,983 
-Bank loans  3,396,733 3,396,983 
Trade payables 7 275,673 1,841,360 
- Due to related parties 4 96,207 51,172 
- Other 7 179,466 1,790,188 
Short term portions of employee benefits 15 621,175 719,224 
Deferred income 9 25,935,063 44,070,843 
- Other  25,935,063 44,070,843 
Other short-term liabilities  2,898,719 2,923,349 
- Other  2,898,719 2,923,349 
    
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES  167,390,603 42,315,152 
Long term borrowings 13 9,721,527 11,349,972 
- Borrowings from related parties 4 9,721,527 11,349,972 
- Bank loans  9,721,527 11,349,972 
Long term portions of employee benefits 15 176,828 151,665 
Deferred income 9 157,492,248 30,813,515 
- Other  157,492,248 30,813,515 
    
EQUITY 17 903,575,978 879,448,866 
Share capital  790,000,000 743,000,000 
Own shares acquired  (22,271,814) (20,946,784) 
Share premium  49,945,096 49,945,096 
Other comprehensive income that will never be reclassified to profit or loss  3,446 3,446 
- Defined benefit plan actuarial gains / (losses)  3,446 3,446 
Restricted reserves  37,486,655 32,833,600 
Retained earnings  19,014,496 17,189,603 
Net profit for the period  29,398,099 57,423,905 
    
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  1,104,093,944 974,715,777 
 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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    Reviewed Reviewed Reviewed Reviewed 

  Notes 1 January ±  1 July -  1 January ±  1 July -  
30 September 2016 30 September 2016 30 September 2015 30 September 2015 

      
Revenue 18 58,975,106 18,767,367 53,582,062 18,375,668 
Cost of sales 18 (13,284,735) (3,980,908) (9,941,628) (3,813,393) 
Gross profit  45,690,371 14,786,459 43,640,434 14,562,275 

      
Administrative expenses 19 (11,000,374) (6,259,266) (6,969,075) (2,112,117) 
Marketing, selling and distribution expenses 20 (4,219,698) (849,557) -- -- 
Other operating income 21 145,483 71,505 922,983 504,106 
Other operating expenses 21 (115,185) (38,740) (1,211,922) (730,309) 
Operating profit   30,500,597 7,710,401 36,382,420 12,223,955 

    
 

 
Financial expenses 22 (1,102,498) (353,653) (1,208,498) (392,703) 
          
Profit before tax  29,398,099 7,356,748 35,173,922 11,831,252 
       

 
 

Tax income / (expense) 23 -- -- -- -- 
          
NET PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD   29,398,099 7,356,748 35,173,922 11,831,252 
Earnings per share 24 0.03721 0.00931 0.04734 0.01592 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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  Reviewed  Reviewed  Reviewed  Reviewed  

 Notes 
1 January ±  

30 September 2016 
1 July ±  

30 September 2016 
1 January ±  

30 September 2015 
1 July ±  

30 September 2015 
      
NET PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD  29,398,099 7,356,748 35,173,922 11,831,252 
      
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME      
      
Other comprehensive income non- 
reclassified to profit or loss  -- -- -- -- 
- Defined benefit plan actuarial gains 
(losses)  -- -- -- -- 
Other comprehensive income reclassified to 
profit or loss   -- -- -- -- 

- Net change in fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets  -- -- -- -- 

      
Other comprehensive income  -- -- -- -- 
      
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  29,398,099 7,356,748 35,173,922 11,831,252 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Other 
comprehensive 

income 
that are or may be 

reclassified to profit 
or loss 

Other comprehensive 
income that will never 
be reclassified to profit 

or loss  Accumulated profit  

 Notes 
Share 

capital 
Own shares 

acquired 
Share 

premiums  

Net loss in fair 
value of available-

for-sale financial 
assets  

Net change in 
remeasurements of 

defined benefit 
liability  

Restricted 
reserves 

Retained 
earnings 

Net profit  
for the 
period Total 

           
Balance at 1 January 2015 17 697,900,000 (19,675,318) 49,945,096 -- (19,660) 28,363,063 9,933,568 61,347,146 827,793,895 
Transfer to reserves  -- -- -- -- -- 4,470,537 56,876,609 (61,347,146) -- 
Total comprehensive income  -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 35,173,922 35,173,922 
Capital increase  45,100,000 (1,271,466) -- -- -- -- (43,828,534) -- -- 
Dividend payment 17 -- -- -- -- -- -- (5,792,040) -- (5,792,040) 
Balance at 30 September 2015 17 743,000,000 (20,946,784) 49,945,096 -- (19,660) 32,833,600 17,189,603 35,173,922 857,175,777 

           
Balance at 1 January 2016 17 743,000,000 (20,946,784) 49,945,096 -- 3,446 32,833,600 17,189,603 57,423,905 879,448,866 
Transfer to reserves  -- -- -- -- -- 4,653,055 52,770,850 (57,423,905) -- 
Total comprehensive income  -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 29,398,099 29,398,099 
Capital increase  47,000,000 (1,325,030) -- -- -- -- (45,674,970) -- -- 
Dividend payment 17 -- -- -- -- -- -- (5,270,987) -- (5,270,987) 
Balance as at 30 September 2016 17 790,000,000 (22,271,814) 49,945,096 -- 3,446 37,486,655 19,014,496 29,398,099 903,575,978 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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 Notes Reviewed Reviewed 

  
1 January ±  

30 September 2016 
1 January ±  

30 September 2015 
    
Cash flows from operating activities  70,525,876 68,496,592 
    
Net profit for the period  29,398,099 35,173,922 
Adjustments related with net profit reconciliation:    
Adjustments to depreciation and amortization  10,11,12 3,122,512 1,652,228 
Adjustments to the provisions  (22,979) (1,909)  
-Adjustments to provision for employee severance indemnity   (22,979) (1,909) 
Adjustments to the interest income and interest expense  (3,691,564) 810,504 
-Adjustments to the interest income  (4,747,901) (438,872) 
-Adjustments to the interest expense  1,056,337 1,249,376 
Adjustments to the unrealized foreign currency conversion  -- 288,939 
Adjustments to the fair value loss / profit  -- (998,008) 
-Adjustments to the financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss  -- (998,008) 
    
Changes in working capital    
Adjustments to the increase/decrease in inventory  (39,871,280) (8,745,655) 
Adjustments to the increase/decrease in trade receivables   (23,514,120) 7,570,844 
-The increase/decrease in due from related parties  4,649,752 -- 
-The increase/decrease in trade receivables   (28,163,872) 7,570,844 
Adjustments to the increase/decrease in prepaid expenses  (6,225,793) 16,521,001 
Adjustments to the increase/decrease in other current assets  75,132 (4,078,967) 
Adjustments to the increase/decrease in trade payables  (1,565,687) 383,538 
-The increase/decrease in due to related parties  45,035 (57,141) 
-The increase/decrease in trade payables from other parties  (1,610,722) 440,679 
Adjustments to the increase/decrease in deferred income  108,542,953 (20,233,008) 
Adjustments to the increase/decrease in other liabilities   (24,629) 881,411 
    
Cash flows related to the operating activities    
Proceeds from sale of shares or debt instruments of a business 
organization or funds  -- 38,899,480 
Proceeds from acquisition of shares or debt instruments of a business 
organization or funds  -- -- 
Interest received  4,353,139 438,872 
Dividend received  -- -- 
Other cash outflows  (49,907) (66,600) 
    
    
Cash flows used in investing activities    
Proceed from sale of tangible assets 11 4,140 2,194 
Cash payments for acquisition of tangible assets 11 (29,619) (20,011) 
Cash payments for acquisition of intangible assets 12 -- (37,408) 
Cash payments for acquisition of investment property 10 (4,004,595) (65,156,527) 
    
Net cash used in investment activities  (4,030,074) (65,211,752) 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

http://tureng.com/search/foreign%20currency%20conversion%20adjustments
http://tureng.com/search/debt%20instrument
http://tureng.com/search/debt%20instrument
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 Notes Reviewed Reviewed 

  
1 January ±  

30 September 2016 
1 January ±  

30 September 2015 
    
Cash flows from financing activities    
    
Interest paid  (1,008,744) (1,156,628) 
Repayment of borrowings  (1,676,289) (1,529,345) 
-Bank borrowings paid  (1,676,289) (1,529,345)  
Dividend paid 17 (5,270,987) (5,792,040)  
    
Net cash used in financing activities  (7,956,020) (8,478,013) 
    
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents before the 

effect of foreign currency conversion adjustments  58,539,782 (5,193,173) 
    
The effect of foreign currency conversion adjustments in cash and 

cash equivalents  -- (28,468) 
    
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  58,539,782 (5,221,641) 
    
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning  16,393,667 8,658,261 
    
Cash and cash equivalents at the period end 5 74,933,449 3,436,620 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

http://tureng.com/search/foreign%20currency%20conversion%20adjustments
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1. REPORTING ENTITY 

+DON�*D\ULPHQNXO�<DWÕUÕP�2UWDNOÕ÷Õ $ù¶V��WKH�³&RPSDQ\´��PDLQ�DFWLYLW\�LV�WR�LQYHVW�LQ�SURSHUWLHV��
property projects and property related capital market instruments. In accordance with the relevant 
DUWLFOH�RI� WKH�&DSLWDO�0DUNHWV�%RDUG�RI�7XUNH\¶V� �³&0%´��&RPPXQLTXp�RQ� WKH�3ULQFLSOHV�RI�5HDO 
Estate Investment Trusts, the main objective of the Company is to invest in properties, property 
projects and property related capital market instruments. 

Basis of operations of the Company are consistent with the regulatory requirements of CMB on the 
Principles of Real Estate Investment Trusts. Investment property portfolio of the Company consists 
of lands and rental properties which are used as bank branches and head office. The Company 
obtained the authorization WR�RSHUDWH�E\�&0%¶V�GRFXPHQW�GDWHG����6HStember 2010 and numbered 
9546 and registered by CMB. 

The Company was established on 18 October 2010. Registered capital ceiling of the Company is TL 
1,500,000,000. Paid in capital of the Company is TL 790,000,000, 196,217,979 of the total paid in 
capital was paid in cash whereas TL 466,282,021 of the total paid in capital was paid in kind and TL 
127,500,000 as paid bonus issue. 

7KH� KHDGTXDUWHU� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\� LV� UHJLVWHUHG� LQ� ùHULIDOL� dLIWOL÷L� 7DWOÕVX�0DK�� (UWX÷UXOJD]L� 6RN��
No:1 34774 YuNDUÕ�'XGXOOX�hPUDQL\H�øVWDQEXO� 

As at 30 September 2016, the number of personnel employed in the Company is 39 (31 December 
2015: 39). 

7KH�&RPSDQ\�LV�D�VXEVLGLDU\�RI�7�UNL\H�+DON�%DQNDVÕ�$ù��³+DONEDQN´��DQG�ZDV�UHJLVWHUHG�RQ����
2FWREHU�������:LWK�WKH�DPHQGPHQW�GDWHG����'HFHPEHU������PDGH�E\�WKH�&0%�WKH�&RPPXQLTXp�
on the Principles of Real Estate Investment Trusts, it is obligatory that the shares of trusts 
representing a minimum 25% of their capital be issued within three months of either the 
establishment of the investment trust or the related amendment to the articles of association being 
registered with the Trade Registry, are offered to public and that they apply to the CMB with the 
request that all shares to be registered.  

The Company has applied to CMB by 29 August 2012 for the purpose of initial public offering of 
the increasing amount of B group of shares TL 185,500,000 notional amount which is increased 
from TL 477,000,000 issued capital of the Company to TL 662,500,000 within TL 1,500,000,000 
registered capital ceiling. Application was approved in accordance with the decision promulgated by 
&0%¶V� QXPEHUHG� ����� RQ� �� )HEUXDU\� ����� As at 13-15 February 2013 there has been an initial 
public offering of B group shares of TL 185,500,000 notional amount by restricting the existent 
shareholders for purchasing the new shares. After the collection of the demanG� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V�
shares started to trade iQ�%RUVD�øVWDQEXO�DW 22 February 2013. 

As at 11 June 2015, the Company increased its share capital to TL 743,000,000 by transferring TL 
45,100,000 from retained earnings to share capital. 

As at 25 May 2016, the Company increased its share capital to TL 790,000,000 by transferring TL 
47,000,000 from retained earnings to share capital. 

As at 4 September 2014, the Company has signed Joint Operation $JUHHPHQW� ZLWK� 9DNÕI�
Gayrimenkul <DWÕUÕP�2UWDNOÕ÷Õ $ù for developing real estate project. 

As at 14 April 2016, the Company has signed Joint Operation Agreement with (U�.RQXW�øQú��7DDK��
øQú��0DO]��1DN��YH�0DG��7LF��YH�6DQ��$�ù� for developing real estate project. 
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2.1. Basis of presentation 

2.1.1. Statement of compliance 

The accompanying financial statements and explanatory notes have been prepared in accordance 
ZLWK�7XUNLVK�$FFRXQWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV����,QWHULP�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ��³7$6���´��SURPXOJDWHG�E\�WKH�
3XEOLF� 2YHUVLJKW� $FFRXQWLQJ� DQG� $XGLWLQJ� 6WDQGDUGV� $XWKRULW\� �³32$´�� DV� set out in the 
FRPPXQLTXp� QXPEHUHG� ,,-����� ³&RPPXQLTXp� RQ� WKH�3ULQFLSOHV� RI�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ� ,Q�&DSLWDO�
0DUNHWV´� �WKH� ³&RPPXQLTXp´�� RI� WKH� &DSLWDO� 0DUNHWV� %RDUG� RI� 7XUNH\� �³&0%´��� ZKLFK� LV�
published on 13 June 2013 at the Official Gazette numbered 28676. 

As at 30 September 2016, the financial statements of the Company have been approved by the Board 
of Directors of the Company on 31 October 2016. 

2.1.2. Basis of presentation of financial statements 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the ³$QQRXQFHPHQW�
on Financial Statements and Footnote Formats´�RI�&0%�GDWHG���-XQH������ 

2.1.3. Functional and presentation currency 

These ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�7XUNLVK�/LUD��³7/´���ZKLFK LV�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�IXQFWLRQDO�
currency. All financial information is presented in TL unless otherwise stated. 

2.1.4. Changes in accounting policies 

The accounting policies applied for the interim period ended 30 September 2016 have been applied 
consistently for the year ended 31 December 2015 in preparing these financial statements. Changes 
in accounting policies are applied retrospectively and restating the prior year financial statements. 
There is no change in the accounting policy. 
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

2.1. Basis of presentation (continued) 

2.1.5. Control of compliance with restrictions on the investment portfolio 

As at 30 September 2016�� WKH� LQIRUPDWLRQ� LQ� ³&RQWURO� RI� FRPSOLDQFH� ZLWK� restrictions on the 
LQYHVWPHQW�SRUWIROLR´�QRWH�DUH� VXPPDU\� LQIRUPDWLRQ�SUHSDUHG� IURP� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV�ZKLFK�DUH�
SUHVHQWHG� ZLWKLQ� WKH� IUDPHZRUN� &RPPXQLTXp� ,,������ LQ� DFFRUGDQFH� ZLWK� WKH� DFFRXQWLQJ� DQG�
reporting principles accepted by the CMB and published in the Official Gazette dated 28 May 2013 
numbered 28660, numbered III-����� ³&RPPXQLTXp� RQ� 5HDO� (VWDWH� ,QYHVWPHQW� %DVLV´� UHODWHG� WR�
control of compliance with restrictions on the investment portfolio. 

³&RQWURO� RI� FRPSOLDQFH� ZLWK� UHVWULFWLRQV� RQ� WKH� LQYHVWPHQW� SRUWIROLR´� LV� SUHSDUHG� IURP�
accompanying financial statements. 

2.2. Changes in accounting estimates and errors 

Changes in accounting estimates, if only for one period, are made in the current period, if it is related 
to future periods, by covering future periods, are applied prospectively. There is no change in 
estimates in the current period. Material errors are corrected, retrospectively; restating the prior year 
financial statements. There is no material errors discovered in the current period. 

2.3. New standards and interpretations implemented and not yet adopted as at 30 September 2016 

2.3.1. The standards and interpretations adopted in 2016 

The Company has applied all the standards and interpretations issued by the POA which are effective 
as at 30 September 2016. 

2.3.2. Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted 

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are issued but not yet effective 
up to the date of issuance of the consolidated financial statements are as follows. The Company will 
make the necessary changes if not indicated otherwise, which will be affecting the consolidated 
financial statements and disclosures, after the new standards and interpretations become in effect. 

TFRS 9 - Financial Instruments ± Classification and measurement 

As amended in December 2012, the new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2018. Phase 1 of this new TFRS 9 introduces new requirements for classifying and 
measuring financial assets and liabilities. The amendments made to TFRS 9 will mainly affect the 
classification and measurement of financial assets and measurement of fair value option (FVO) 
liabilities and requires that the change in fair value of a FVO financial liability attributable to credit 
risk is presented under other comprehensive income. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is in 
the process of assessing the impact of the standard on financial position or performance of the 
Company. 
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

2.3.2. Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted (continued) 

TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

As issued in September 2016, the new standard replaces existing TFRS guidance and introduces a 
new control-based revenue recognition model for contracts with customers. In the new standard, total 
consideration measured will be the amount to which the Company expects to be entitled, rather than 
fair value and new guidance have been introduced on separating goods and services in a contract and 
recognizing revenue over time. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2018, with early adoption permitted under TFRS. The Company is in the process of 
assessing the impact of the amendment on financial position or performance of the Company. 

The new standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) but not issued by POA 

The following standards, interpretations and amendments to existing IFRS standards are issued by 
the IASB but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the financial statements. However, these 
standards, interpretations and amendments to existing IFRS standards are not yet adapted/issued to 
TFRS by the POA, thus they do not constitute part of TFRS. Such standards, interpretations and 
amendments that are issued by the IASB but not yet issued by the POA are referred to as IFRS or 
IAS. The Company will make the necessary changes to its consolidated financial statements after the 
new standards and interpretations are issued and become effective under TFRS. 

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments ± Hedge Accounting and amendments to TFRS 9, TFRS 7 and 
TAS 39 -IFRS 9 (2013) 

In November 2013, the IASB issued a new version of IFRS 9, which includes the new hedge 
accounting requirements and some related amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 7. Entities may make an 
accounting policy choice to continue to apply the hedge accounting requirements of IAS 39 for all of 
their hedging transactions. Further, the new standard removes the 1 January 2015 effective date of 
IFRS 9. The new version of IFRS 9 issued after IFRS 9 (2013) introduces the mandatory effective 
date of 1 January 2018 for IFRS 9, with early adoption permitted. The Company is in the process of 
assessing the impact of the standard on financial position or performance of the Company. 

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2014) 

IFRS 9, published in July 2014, replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments 
Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and 
measurement of financial instruments including a new expected credit loss model for calculating 
impairment on financial assets, and the new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries 
forward the guidance on recognition and de-recognition of financial instruments from TAS 39. IFRS 
9 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early adoption 
permitted. The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of the standard on financial 
position or performance of the Company. 
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

2.3.2. Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted (continued) 

The new standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) but not issued by POA (continued) 

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows ± Disclosure Initiative 

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows has been amended as SDUW�RI�WKH�,$6%¶V�EURDGHU�GLVFORVXUH�LQLWLDWLYH�
to improve presentation and disclosure in financial statements. The amendments will require 
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from 
financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flow and non-cash changes. The 
amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with earlier application 
permitted. The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendment on financial 
position or performance of the Company. 

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes± Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized 
Losses 

The amendments clarify that the existence of a deductible temporary difference depends solely on a 
comparison of the carrying amount of an asset and its tax base at the end of the reporting period, and 
is not affected by possible future changes in the carrying amount or expected manner of recovery of 
the asset. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. 
The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendment on financial position or 
performance of the Company. 

Amendments to IFRS 2 ± Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment 
Transactions 

IFRS 2 Share-Based Payment has been amended by IASB to improving consistency and resolve 
some long-standing ambiguities in share-based payment accounting. The amendments cover three 
accounting areas: i) measurement of cash-settled share-based payments, ii) classification of share-
based payments settled net of tax withholdings; and iii) accounting for modification of a share-based 
payment from cash-settled to equity-settled. Also, same approach has been adopted for the 
measurement of cash-settled share-based payments as equity-settled share-based payments. If certain 
conditions are met, share-based payments settled net of tax withholdings are accounted for as equity-
settled share-based payments. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2018, with earlier application permitted. The Company is in the process of assessing the 
impact of the amendment on financial position or performance of the Company. 
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

2.4. Summary of significant accounting policies 

2.4.1. Accounting for joint operations  

The Company has signed a joint operation agrHHPHQW�ZLWK�9DNÕI�*D\ULPHQNXO�<DWÕUÕP�2UWDNOÕ÷Õ�$ù�
for developing real estate projects. 

The Company as a joint operator recognize its share in assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses 
interest in the joint operation in accordance with the TFRS 11 ³-RLQW�$UUDQJHPHQWV´� 

2.4.2. Revenue and expenses  

Revenue is recognised when there is a possibility of obtaining economic benefit and when it is 
possible to measure the revenue in a reliable manner. In order to recognise revenue below mentioned 
conditions should have been formed. 

Rental income from investment property 

Rental income from investment properties are recognised on accrual basis. Revenue is recognised 
when there is a possibility of economic benefits will flow to the entity and when it is possible to 
measure the revenue reliably�� 7KH� UHQWDO� LQFRPH� LQ�ZKLFK� LPSRUWDQW� SRUWLRQ� RI� RZQHU¶V� ULVNV� DQG�
rewards are transferred to the leaseholder is classified as financial lease. All other leases are 
classified as operating leases. 

Sale of lands 

Revenue is recognised when all significant risks and rewards regarding the lands are transferred to 
the buyer and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.  

Sales of land by way of ³/DQG�6DOH�RI�5HYHQXH�6KDULQJ�$JUHHPHQW´��³LSRSA´� 

7KH� &RPSDQ\� UHFRJQL]HV� UHYHQXH� IURP� WKH� VDOH� RI� ODQG� E\� WKH� ZD\� RI� ³/DQG� 6DOH� RI� 5HYHQXH�
6KDULQJ�$JUHHPHQW´��/656$��ZKHQ�WUDQVIHU�RI�OHJDO�RZQHUVKLS�RI�ODQG��Ls transferred to the buyer. 
When the legal ownership is not transferred, the Company books revenue as deferred income and 
VKDUH�RI�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�HQWLW\�DV�OLDELOLW\�WR�FRQWUDFWRU��7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�VKDUH�LQ�7RWDO�6DOHV�5HYHQXH�
�³765´���LV�UHFRUGHG�DV�UHYHQXH�IUom sale of land and related cost is recognised as cost of land sold 
into the comprehensive income statement. 

Revenue 

Revenue consists of rental income from real estate, real estate sales revenue and income from capital 
market instruments. Rental income recorded on an accrual basis and the income from capital market 
instruments recorded as in accordance with the accounting policies disclosed in Note 2.4.8. 

Sales income  

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the investment 
property are transferred to the buyer and the amount is reliably measured. Revenue is recognised 
when and only when the Company transfers the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 
goods to the buyer, retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually 
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold, the amount of revenue can be 
measured reliably, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow 
to the entity and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured 
reliably. 

Revenue and cost of sales are recognised once the sales contracts of the projects are in line with the 
above stated criteria. 



HALK GA<5ø0(1.8/�<$7,5,0�257$./,ö,�$ù 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016 
($PRXQWV�H[SUHVVHG�LQ�7XUNLVK�/LUD��³T/´��XQOHVV�RWKHUZLVH�VWDWHG.) 
 

13 

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

2.4.2. Revenue and expenses (continued) 

Interest income 

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss on accrual basis. 

Other income and expense 

Other income and expense is recognised in profit or loss on accrual basis. 

Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying 
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use or sale. Finance income earned from project loans of which has not been used as an 
investment for a temporary period are net off with the borrowing costs. All other borrowing costs are 
recognised in profit or loss in the period which they are incurred. 

2.4.3. Investment property 

Investment property is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. 
Investment property are those which are held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation 
or for both. 

Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the investment property. 
Except land, the expected useful life of investment property is 50 years. 

Since the useful life of land is indefinite, it is not subject to depreciation. 

Expenditures incurred to replace a component of investment property that is accounted for 
separately, including major inspection and overhaul costs, are capitalised. Other subsequent 
expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the item 
of investment property. All other expenditures are recognised in profit or loss as expense as incurred. 

Investment property is recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are 
associated with them will flow to the Company and the cost of them can be measured reliably. 

2.4.4. Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. As at 30 September 2016, cost 
components included in the inventory consist of the land cost which is held for sale of the residence 
project by the Company. 

The Company enters into revenue sharing agreements with construction entities in order to increase 
sales proceeds from the sales of vacant lands. These lands which subject to revenue sharing 
DJUHHPHQWV� �³/656$´��DUH�DFFRXQWHG�DW�FRVW�XQWLO� WKH� VDOH� LV� UHFRJQLVHG��6DOH� LV� UHFRJQLVHG�ZKHQ�
risk and rewards of ownership of land is transferred to the ultimate customers (customers of the 
construction entities) and when the sales proceeds are reliably determinable. 
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

2.4.5. Tangible assets 

All tangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the property, plant and 
equipment from the date of acquisition. The expected useful life of furniture and fixtures is 5 years. 
The useful life of leasehold improvements, accounted under tangible assets, is equal to life of rent 
agreements. 

Subsequent expenditure 

Expenditures incurred to replace a component of tangible assets that is accounted for separately, 
including major inspection and overhaul costs, are capitalised. Other subsequent expenditure is 
capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the item of tangible 
assets. All other expenditures are recognised in profit or loss as expense as incurred. The gain or loss 
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of tangible assets is determined as the difference 
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss. 

2.4.6. Intangible assets 

All intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated 
impairment losses. 

Amortization 

Amortization is recognised on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of intangible assets. The 
expected useful life of licence rights is between 4-10 years. 

2.4.7. Impairment of assets 

The Company determines whether there are any indicators for impairment at every reporting date. In 
the case of an indicator, the recoverable value of that asset is estimated. Where it is not possible to 
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable 
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value 
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. 

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its 
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

2.4.8. Financial instruments 

The Company has the following financial assets; cash and cash equivalents, financial investments 
and trade receivables; and has the following financial liabilities; loans and borrowings and trade 
payables. 
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

2.4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

2.4.8. Financial instruments (continued) 

i) Non-derivative financial assets 

The Company initially recognises the financial assets on the date they are originated. 

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly 
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition non-derivative financial instruments 
are measured as described below: The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual 
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash 
flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in such transferred financial asset that is 
created or retained by the Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of cash, bank deposits with maturity periods of less than 
three-months and other highly liquid short-term investments which are readily convertible to a 
known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. The carrying values 
of these assets are close to their fair values. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial 
asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term. 
Derivatives are also categorized as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in 
this category are classified as current assets.  

Held for trading financial assets recognized initially on the trade date by their carrying amount and 
adjusted to their fair value after initial recognition. Gain and losses of held for trading financial 
assets are recognized through profit or loss. 

Available for sale financial assets 

Available for sale financial assets are the financial assets other than assets held for trading purposes, 
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held to maturity financial assets and loans and 
receivables. 

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured at their fair values. Unrecognised gains 
or losses derived from the difference between their fair value and the discounted values calculated 
SHU�HIIHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�PHWKRG�DUH�UHFRUGHG�LQ�³other comprehensive income that are and may be 
reclassified to profit or loss´�XQGHU�other comprehensive income. In case of sales, the realised gain or 
losses are recognised directly in the statement of operations. 

Held to maturity investments 

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that the 
Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity 
investments. Held-to-maturity investments are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method less impairment, with revenue recognized using effective interest method. 

Trade and other receivables 

The Company initially recognises trade and other receivables on the date that they are originated and 
then discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. Specific allowances are identified 
as being impaired based on regular reviews of outstanding balances to reduce receivables to their 
recoverable amounts. 
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

2.4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

2.4.8. Financial instruments (continued) 

ii) Non-derivative financial liabilities 

Loans and borrowings 

Loans and borrowings are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method. The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its 
contractual liabilities are discharged, cancelled or expire. 

Trade and other payables 

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable 
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition these financial liabilities are measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

iii) Paid-in capital  

Ordinary shares 

Ordinary shares are classified as paid in capital. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of 
ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects. 

2.4.9. Offsetting 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial 
position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

2.4.10. Effects of changes in exchange rates 

The financial statements of the Company is presented in the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the entity operates. For the purpose of the financial statements, the results and 
financial position of the Company is expressed in TRY, which is the functional currency of the 
Company, and the presentation currency for the financial statements. 

Income and expenses from transactions in foreign currencies have been translated into Turkish Lira 
�³7/´�� DW� WKH� H[FKDQJH� UDWHV� SUHYDLOLQJ� DW� WKH� GDWHV� RI� WKH� WUDQVDFWLRQV�� 0RQHWDU\� DVVHWV� DQG�
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies have been translated into TL at the exchange rates 
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains or losses arising from conversion of foreign 
currency items have been included in the income statement. 

2.4.11. Earnings per share 

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing profit or loss by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding during the period. In Turkey, companies to existing shareholders from 
retained earnings and shareholders¶ equity, shares distributing VKDUHV��³bonus shares´) may increase 
their capital. In case of calculation of earnings per share, this export of bonus share is accepted as 
issued shares. Therefore average of weighted number of shares used in calculation of earnings per 
share is provided by applying issued of bonus share retrospectively. 
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

2.4. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

2.4.12. Subsequent events  

Subsequent events represent the events that occur against or on behalf of the Company between the 
reporting date and the date when reporting was authorised for the issue. There are two types of 
subsequent events: 

- those that provide evidence of conditions that existed as at reporting date (adjusting events after 
the reporting date); and 

- those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events 
after the reporting date). 

If there is evidence of such events as of reporting date or if such events occur after reporting date and 
LI�DGMXVWPHQWV�DUH�QHFHVVDU\��WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�DGMXVWHG�DFFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�QHZ�
situation. The Company discloses the post-balance sheet events that are not adjusting events but 
material. 

2.4.13. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present implicit or legal obligation as a result of 
a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
If the specified criteria are not met, the Company discloses the related issues in the notes. 

If the inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements. If the inflow of the economic benefit is more than likely to occur, such asset 
and income statement effect are recognised in the financial statements at the relevant period that 
income change effect occurs. 

2.4.14. Related parties 

Shareholders, key management and board members, in each case together with companies controlled 
by or affiliated with them, and associated companies are considered and referred to as related parties. 
Transactions with the related parties consist of the transfer of the assets and liabilities between 
related parties by a price or free of charge. 
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

2.4.15. Segment reporting 

The Company operates solely as real estate investments trust therefore segment information is not 
presented. 

2.4.16. Discontinued operations 

None. 

2.4.17. Government grants and incentives 

As disclosed in Note 2.4.18, the Company which operates as a real estate investment trust, is exempt 
from corporate tax. 

2.4.18. Taxation 

Corporate income tax 

According to Article 5/1(d) (4) of the New Corporate Tax Law No: 5220, the income of Real Estate 
,QYHVWPHQW�7UXVWV��³5(,7´��LV�H[HPSW�IURP�&RUSRUDWH�,QFRPH�7D[�LQ�7XUNH\��7KLV�H[HPSWLRQ�LV�DOVR�
applicable to Quarterly Advance Corporate Tax. 

According to New Corporate Tax Law Article 15/(3), the income of REITs is subject to 15% 
withholding tax irrespective of its distribution. The Council of Ministers has the authority to increase 
the withholding tax rate on REIT income to corporate income tax rate or reduce it to 0% or change it 
within the limits defined through publication of a Decree based on the Corporate Tax Law Article 
15/(4). In accordance with New Corporate Tax Law Article 15/(2), income subject to corporate tax is 
also exempt from withholding tax. 

According to temporary Article (1) of the New Corporate Tax Law, resolutions of the Council of 
Ministers related with Income Tax Law numbered 193 and Tax Law No: 5422 are valid up to new 
Decrees published by the Council of Ministers. Determined rates cannot exceed statutory limits defined 
at New Corporate Tax Law. 

Based on the resolution of the Council of Ministers related to the withholding tax rates which were 
determined as 15% according to the New Corporate Tax Law Article 15/(3) published in the Official 
Gazette dated 3 February 2009 numbered 27130, the withholding tax rate is determined as 0% and this 
resolution is effective on the same date. Thereof, in accordance with the Article 5/1(d) (4) of the New 
Corporate Tax Law, real estate investment company earnings, regardless of the fact they are distributed 
or not, will be subject to 0% withholding. 

Deferred tax 

Since the Company is exempt from Corporate Income Tax in Turkey in accordance with Article 5 of 
the Corporate Tax Law, deferred tax is not recognised. 

2.4.19. Employee benefits / reserve for employee severance indemnity 

Under Turkish law and union agreements, lump sum payments are made to employees retiring or 
involuntarily leaving the Company. 

The provision for employee severance indemnity has been calculated by estimating the present value 
of the future probable obligation of the Company arising from the retirement of employees.  

2.4.20. Statement of cash flows 

The Company presents statement of cash flows as an integral part of other financial statements to 
inform the users of financial statements about the changes in its net assets, its financial structure and 
its ability to manage the amount and timing of its cash flows under new condition. 
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

2.5. Significant accounting estimations, presumption and assumptions 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods 
affected. 

In particular, information about significant accounting estimates used are described in the following 
notes: 

Note 10 Investment property 

3. JOINT OPERATIONS  

As at 30 September 2016 and 31 December 2015, voting right of the Company in the joint operation 
is as follows: 

Voting right in the joint operation 30 September 2016 31 December 2015 
   
Halk GYO-9DNÕI�*<2�$GL�2UWDNOÕ÷Õ 50.0% 50.0% 

 
Voting right in the joint operation 30 September 2016 31 December 2015 
   
Halk GYO- Erkonut $GL�2UWDNOÕ÷Õ 50.0% -- 

Halk GYO-9DNÕI�*<2�$GL�2UWDNOÕ÷Õ 

Halk GYO-9DNÕI�*<2�$GL�2UWDNOÕ÷Õ has founded in Turkey for operating as a joint operation with 
����VKDUHV�DQG�����YRWLQJ�ULJKW��7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�VLJQHG�D�MRLQW�RSHUDWLRQ�DJUHHPHQW�ZLWK�9DNÕI�
*D\ULPHQNXO�<DWÕUÕP�2UWDNOÕ÷Õ�$ù�IRU�GHYHORSLQJ�UHDO�HVWDWH�SURMHFWV� 

As at 30 September 2016 and 31 December 2015��WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�VKDUe in financial statements of the 
Halk GYO-9DNÕI�*<2�$GL�2UWDNOÕ÷Õ�LV�as follows: 

 
30 September 2016 31 December 2015 

   
Non-current assets 50,691,449 20,707,816 
Current assets 99,052,949 72,250,814 
Short-term liabilities (1,746,387) (630,357) 
Long-term liabilities (151,992,628) (32,939,539) 
   
Net assets (3,994,617) 59,388,734 
   

 

1 January ±  
30 September 2016 

1 January ±  
30 September 2015 

   
Income -- -- 
Expenses (3,974,692) -- 
   
Net loss (3,974,692) -- 
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3. JOINT OPERATIONS (continued) 

Halk GYO-Erkonut $GL�2UWDNOÕ÷Õ 

Halk GYO-Erkonut $GL�2UWDNOÕ÷Õ has founded in Turkey for operating as a joint operation with 50% 
shares and 50% voting right. The Company has signed a joint operation agreement with Er Konut 
øQú��7DDK��øQú��0DO]��1DN��YH�0DG��7LF��YH�6DQ��$�ù� for developing real estate projects. 

As at 30 September 2016 DQG����'HFHPEHU�������WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�VKDUH�LQ�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�WKH�
Halk GYO-(UNRQXW�$GL�2UWDNOÕ÷Õ�LV�DV�IROORZV� 

 
30 September 2016 31 December 2015 

   
Non-current assets 13,778,117 -- 
Current assets 41,627,313 -- 
Short-term liabilities (729,010) -- 
Long-term liabilities (54,774,769) -- 
   
Net assets (98,349) -- 
   

 

1 January ±  
30 September 2016 

1 January ±  
30 September 2015 

   
Income -- -- 
Expenses (148,349) -- 
   
Net loss (148,349) -- 
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4. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

4.1. Due from / to related parties 

 30 September 2016 31 December 2015 
   
Banks-Demand deposits   
Halkbank 2,561,416 391,196 
   
Banks-Time deposits    
Halkbank 71,728,224 15,243,274 
   
Banks -Other liquid assets    
Halkbank 352,845 650,330 
   
Total 74,642,485 16,284,800 
   
Due from related parties -- 4,649,752 
Halkbank -- 4,649,752 
   
Prepaid expenses 328,351 52,219 
+DON�6LJRUWD�$ù  322,250 46,875 
+DON�+D\DW�YH�(PHNOLOLN�$ù 6,101 5,344 
   
Other current assets 725 214,083 
Halkbank 725 214,083 
   
Capitalization of expenses on investment 

properties 300 1,013,850 
Halkbank 300 759,939 
+DON�6LJRUWD�$ù -- 253,911 
   
Total 329,376 5,929,904 
   
Financial borrowings   
Halkbank ±short term 3,396,733 3,396,983 
Halkbank ±long term 9,721,527 11,349,972 
   
Total 13,118,260 14,746,955 
   
Due to related parties   
+DON�6LJRUWD�$ù 90,686 50,907 
+DONEDQN�$ù 5,521 265 
   
Total 96,207 51,172 
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4. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued) 

4.2. Income and expenses from related parties 

  1 January ±  1 June -  1 January ±  1 June -  

 
30 September  

2016 
30 September  

2016 
30 September  

2015 
30 September  

2015 

     
Revenue-Rental income     
Halkbank 27,377,047 8,889,181 23,251,462 8,295,304 
+DON�)DNWRULQJ�$ù -- -- 60,926 -- 
+DON�+D\DW�YH�(PHNOLOLN�$ù 68,566 22,855 64,285 21,428 
+DON�6LJRUWD�$ù 68,566 22,855 64,285 21,428 
+DON�<DWÕUÕP�0HQNXO�'H÷HUOHU�$ù -- -- -- -- 
Total 27,514,179 8,934,891 23,440,958 8,338,160 

  
   

Revenue-Interest income 
 

   
Halkbank financial investment interest 
income -- -- 942,497 -- 
Halkbank deposit interest income 4,173,223 1,254,703 438,873 92,237 
+DON�<DWÕUÕP�0HQNXO�'H÷HUOHU�$ù 90,800 90,800 -- -- 
Total 4,264,023 1,345,503 1,381,370 92,237 

  
   

Other income 
 

   
Halk Hayat ve (PHNOLOLN�$ù -- -- 9,146 -- 
+DON�6LJRUWD�$ù -- -- 1,582 -- 
Total -- -- 10,728 -- 

  
   

Financial expenses-Interest expenses     
Halkbank 1,056,337 340,971 1,208,498 392,703 
Total 1,056,337 340,971 1,208,498 392,703 

  
   

Cost of sales-Commission expenses     
+DON�<DWÕUÕP�0HQNXO�'H÷HUOHU�$ù -- -- 695 -- 
+DON�3RUWI|\�<|QHWLPL�$ù -- -- -- -- 
Total -- -- 695 -- 

  
   

Cost of sales-Other expenses 
 

   
+DON�6LJRUWD�$ù 428,458 259,033 160,694 42,475 
Halkbank 15,941 11,792 45,311 20,705 
Halk Hayat YH�(PHNOLOLN�$ù 6,150 4,226 7,498 134 
7��+DON�%DQNDVÕ�6SRU�.XO�E� -- -- -- -- 
+DON�<DWÕUÕP�0HQNXO�'H÷HUOHU�$�ù� -- -- -- -- 
Total 450,549 275,051 213,503 63,314 

For the interim period ended 30 September 2016, 54% of the revenue comprised the rent and interest 
income from the related parties (30 September 2015: 46%).  

For the interim period ended 30 September 2016 and 2015, interest income was generated from term 
deposits and interest expenses comprised from interest expenses on borrowings. 

For the interim period ended 30 September 2016, total benefit which has been provided to 
&RPSDQ\¶V�WRS�H[HFXWLYHV�LV�DPRXQWLQJ�WR�TL 698,500 (30 September 2015: TL 669,734). 
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5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

As at 30 September 2016 and 31 December 2015, cash and cash equivalents are as follows: 

 30 September 2016 31 December 2015 
   
Banks-Time deposits 72,219,935 15,245,167 
Banks-Demand deposits 2,751,252 393,560 
Other liquid assets(*) 399,815 797,731 
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of 
financial position  75,371,002 16,436,458 
   
Interest income accruals on cash equivalents (437,553) (42,791) 
   
Cash and cash equivalents 
in the statement of cash flows  74,933,449 16,393,667 
(*) As at 30 September 2016 and 31 December 2015, other liquid assets consist of credit card 

UHFHLYDEOHV�IURP�VDOHV�RI�UHVLGHQWLDO�XQLW�RI�%DNÕUN|\�3URMHFW�DQG�(VNLúHKLU�3URMHFW� 

As at 30 September 2016 and 31 December 2015, the details of time deposits at banks, bank bonds 
and reverse repo are as follows: 

30 September 2016 Amount 
Nominal interest 

rate (%) Maturity 
    
Time deposits    
TL 7,465,963 11.25% 27 October 2016 
TL 6,066,393 11.25% 20 October 2016 
TL 5,134,488 11.25% 24 November 2016 
TL 5,033,811 11.25% 17 November 2016 
TL 4,954,221 11.25% 13 October 2016 
TL 4,611,311 11.25% 01 December 2016 
TL 4,201,291 11.25% 22 December 2016 
TL 3,859,467 11.25% 27 October 2016 
TL 3,508,607 11.25% 08 December 2016 
TL 3,228,525 11.25% 10 November 2016 
TL 2,620,037 11.25% 07 October 2016 
TL 2,522,285 11.25% 13 October 2016 
TL 2,506,066 11.10% 20 October 2016 
TL 2,500,768 11.25% 15 December 2016 
TL 2,500,768 11.25% 10 November 2016 
TL 2,026,434 11.25% 07 October 2016 
TL 2,017,828 11.25% 03 November 2016 
TL 2,017,828 11.25% 06 October 2016 
TL 1,500,461 11.25% 03 November 2016 
TL 1,050,854 8.00% 03 October 2016 
TL 960,866 8.00% 03 October 2016 
TL 840,750 8.25% 03 October 2016 
TL 438,106 8.00% 03 October 2016 
TL 326,809 8.00% 03 October 2016 
TL 271,839 8.00% 03 October 2016 
TL 54,159 8.00% 03 October 2016 
    
Total 72,219,935   
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5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)  

31 December 2015 Amount 
Nominal interest 

rate (%) Maturity 
    
Time deposits    
TL 5,524,976 12.75 % 19 January 2016 
TL 3,013,623 12.75 % 19 January 2016 
TL 2,004,192 12.75 % 28 January 2016 
TL 1,992,336 8.00 % 4 January 2016 
TL 1,663,460 8.00 % 4 January 2016 
TL 735,712 8.00 % 4 January 2016 
TL 182,066 8.00 % 4 January 2016 
TL 121,872 9.00 % 4 January 2016 
TL 5,037 9.00 % 4 January 2016 
TL 1,893 9.00 % 4 January 2016 
    
Total 15,245,167   
 

6. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 

As at 30 September 2016, the Company has not any financial investment (31 December 2015: 
None).  

7. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND TRADE PAYABLES 

Trade receivables 

The &RPSDQ\¶V�VKRUW�WHUP�WUDGH�UHFHLYDEOHV�FRQVLVW�RI�QRWHV�UHFHLYDEOH�IURP�VDOH�RI�UHVLGHQWLDO and 
UHQWDO� LQFRPH� DW� %DNÕUN|\� 3URMHFW� (VNLúHKLU� 3DQRUDPD� 3URMHFW��  Bizimtepe Aydos Project and 
(U]XUXP�ùHKULVWDQ�3URMHFW respectively amounting to TL 1,506,529, TL 14,160 ,TL 8,652,935, TL 
316,255 and other receivables amounting to TL 2,739,726 (31 December 2015: %DNÕUN|\�3URMHFW�TL 
1,297,847, 3DQRUDPD� 3OXV� (VNLúHKLU TL 547,737, Bizimtepe Aydos Project TL 3,558,719, and 
.RFDHOL�ùHNHUSÕQDU Project TL 4,649,752 and other receivables amounting to TL 22,443). 

7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�Oong-term trade receivables consist of notes receivable from sale of residential units 
DW�%DNÕUN|\�3URMHFW� Bizimtepe Aydos Project DQG�(U]XUXP�ùHKULVWDQ�3URMHFW�respectively amounting 
to TL 8,128,088, TL 31,140,420 and TL 126,244. (31 December 2015: %DNÕUN|\� 3URMHFW TL 
15,394,330 and Bizimtepe Aydos Project TL 3,639,409). 

Trade payables 

As at 30 September 2016 and 31 December 2015, trade payables are as follows: 

Short term trade payables 

 30 September 2016 31 December 2015 
   
Other trade payables 179,466 1,790,188 
Trade payables to related parties (Note 4) 96,207 51,172 
   
Total 275,673 1,841,360 
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8. INVENTORIES 

As at 30 September 2016 and 31 December 2015, inventories are as follows: 

Land stocks 
31 December 2015  

Cost Additions Disposals 
30 September 2016 

Cost 
     
øVWDQEXO�%DNÕUN|\�/DQG�± 
Residence Project(1) 10,061,154  -- (2,801,370) 7,259,784 
(VNLúHKLU- 2GXQSD]DUÕ�/DQG�
± Residence Project(2) 22,591,755 -- (6,616,219) 15,975,536 
Sancaktepe Project(3) 65,311,991 23,710,041 -- 89,022,032 
(U]XUXP�ùHKULVWDQ�3URMHFW(4) -- 25,578,828 -- 25,578,828 
     
Total 97,964,900 49,288,869 (9,417,589) 137,836,180 
(1) 7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�DUUDQJHG�D�ELG�WR�GHYHORS�D�SURMHFW�RQ�%DNÕUN|\�/DQG�DV�/and Sale of Revenue Sharing 

Agreement (LSRSA) and as a consequence signed a contract with a firm on 17 February 2012. The 
Company registered for each plot that the project takes place for construction servitude on 24 February 
2014. As at 30 September 2016, 26 independent unit was sold amounting to TL 7,962,192 and cost of 
sales relating to these sales is amounting to TL 2,232,608 (31 December 2015: 120 independent unit sold 
amounting to TL 35,835,980 and cost of sales relating to these sales is amounting to TL 10,692,648). 

The Company has received an advance payment from subcontractor due to agreement ongoing project 
related with LSRSA amounting to TL 18,100,000 and TL 100,000 respectively on 17 February 2012 and 
1 March 2013. The CompaQ\¶V�SURMHFWHG�ODQG�FRVW�LV�7/������������ 

5HIHUDQV�%DNÕUN|\�3URMHFW�SODQV�ZKLFK�ILUVW�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SHUPLVVLRQ�ZDV�REWDLQHG�DV�DW����0D\������DQG�
still under construction have been modified to provide 254 residential and 73 commercial units, as 
opposed to prior 256 residential and 70 commercial units and the modification permission of the revised 
project has been approved by relevant authorities as at 19 September 2013. As at 30 September 2016, the 
deed transfer process of 238 independent units has been completed. 

 (2) (VNLúHKLU�2GXQSD]DUÕ�/DQG�LV�UHJLVWHUHG�WR�2GXQSD]DUÕ�(VNLúHKLU�QHLJKERXUKRRG�ZLWK������EORFN����SORW�
and 90 plot. It has place 13,073 m2��(VNLúHKLU�2GXQSD]DUÕ Land is registered to 110 plot with change at 
WKH� SDUWLWLRQ� SODQ� DW� ��� 0DUFK� ������ 7KH� &RPSDQ\� KDV� DFTXLUHG� WKH� SORW� EHORQJV� WR� (VNLúHKLU�
Municipality within new 110 plot cost value of TL 668,000 at 22 March 2013 and registered previously 
named 89 plot and 90 plot as 110 plot. Due to new partition plan investment property is entrusted from 
13,073 m2 registered as 9,811 m2. After entrusting, description of the plot has changed to land from 
factory building. The deeds of floor easement of 97 residential and 5 commercial units were taken as of 
30 December 2014. As at 30 September 2016, 18 independent unit was sold amounting to TL 8,270,000 
and cost of sales relating to these sales is amounting to TL 6,963,515 (As at 31 December 2015, 46 
independent unit was sold amounting to TL 19,593,827 and cost of sales relating to these sales is 
amounting to TL 16,237,690). Block D and Block B amounting to TL 2,288,616 have been transferred to 
the investment property in 2015. 

 (3) As at 16 October 2014, land in Sancaktepe/Istanbul was purchased amounting to TL 110,000,000 by Halk 
GYO-9DNÕI�*<2�$GL�2UWDNOÕ÷Õ�for real estate project. The main contractor services agreement has been 
signed at 22 October 2015 and the construction permit has been granted on 06 November 2015. There is 
no restriction on the land stock. 

(4) As at 1 April 2016, land in Yakutiye /Erzurum was purchased amounting to TL 17,500,000 by Halk 
GYO-Erkonut $GL� 2UWDNOÕ÷Õ for real estate project. The main contractor services agreement has been 
signed at 31 May 2016 and the construction permit has been granted on 10 May 2016. There is no 
restriction on the inventories. 
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9. DEFERRED INCOME 
As at 30 September 2016 and 31 December 2015, the details of long and short term deferred income 
are as follow: 

 30 September 2016 31 December 2015 
   
Deferred residential sale income(1) 25,935,063 44,070,843 
Total short term deferred income 25,935,063 44,070,843 
   
Deferred residential sale income (2) 157,492,248 30,813,515 
Total long term deferred income 157,492,248 30,813,515 
   
Total deferred income 183,427,311 74,884,358 
(1) Deferred residential unit sale income consist of TL 24,103,069 provided by sales of residences 

IURP�/656$�SURMHFW�UHDOL]HG�RQ�DQ�HVWDWH�ORFDWHG� LQ�%DNÕUN|\�DQG�7/�1,831,994 provided by 
sales of residence project realized from Eskisehir-2GXQSD]DUÕ Project Deferred residential unit 
sale income consists of balances in according to sales on LSRSA project. Due to the contract 
50.5% revenue from sales is collected by the Company. As at 30 September 2016, TL 
13,916,718 of sale is actualized and payment was made to subcontractor at amount progress 
SRUWLRQ��5HIHUDQV�%DNÕUN|\�3URMHFW�FRQVLVWV�RI�����UHVLGHQWLDO�DQG����FRPPHUFLDO�XQLWV��$V�DW�30 
September 2016, 291 unit has been sold amounting to TL 199.2 Million and conveyance of title 
has been completed for 238 residential unit amounting to TL 160.8 Million.  

(2) Total long term deferred income consist of TL 134,672,038 provided by sales of residences 
from Bizimtepe Aydos Project, which is on Sancaktepe land and TL 22,820,210 provided by 
sales of residences from ùHKULVWDQ Project, which is on Erzurum land. 

10. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 

As at 30 September 2016 and 31 December 2015, the details of investment property are as follow: 

 30 September 2016 31 December 2015 
   
Buildings 480,621,067 483,406,659 
Investment property under construction 309,673,692 305,694,522 
   
Total 790,294,759 789,101,181 

Insurance amount on investment properties as at 30 September 2016 is TL 245,334,793 (31 
December 2015: TL 310,434,793). 
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10. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 

As at 30 September 2016, investment property movement is as follows: 

Investment property 
Cost at 

31 December 2015 Additions Transfers 
Cost at  

30 September 2016 
Amortisation at  

31 December 2015 Additions Disposals 
Depreciation at  

30 September 2016 
Net book value at  

30 September 2016 
          
øVWDQEXO�.DUDN|\�%XLOGLQJ 23,500,000 -- -- 23,500,000 198,750 28,814 -- 227,564 23,272,436 
øVWDQEXO�6DOÕSD]DUÕ�%XLOGLQJ�(a) 22,000,000 25,425 -- 22,025,425 357,489 51,827 -- 409,316 21,616,109 
ø]PLU�.RQDN�%XLOGLQJ-1 13,400,000 -- -- 13,400,000 333,688 48,556 -- 382,244 13,017,756 
$QNDUD�.Õ]ÕOD\�%XLOGLQJ� 12,475,237 -- -- 12,475,237 165,620 24,011 -- 189,631 12,285,606 
øVWDQEXO�%H\R÷OX�%XLOGLQJ 12,000,000 -- -- 12,000,000 68,964 9,998 -- 78,962 11,921,038 
øVWDQEXO�%HúLNWDú Building 11,893,840 -- -- 11,893,840 91,067 13,202 -- 104,269 11,789,571 
øVWDQEXO�(WLOHU�%XLOGLQJ 11,000,000 -- -- 11,000,000 63,287 9,175 -- 72,462 10,927,538 
øVWDQEXO�ùLúOL�%XLOGLQJ 11,000,000 -- -- 11,000,000 197,772 28,672 -- 226,444 10,773,556 
ø]PLU�.RQDN�%XLOGLQJ-2 10,290,000 -- -- 10,290,000 141,314 20,563 -- 161,877 10,128,123 
$QNDUD�%DúNHQW�%XLOGLQJ 9,541,729 -- -- 9,541,729 100,791 14,612 -- 115,403 9,426,326 
øVWDQEXO�%DNÕUN|\�%XLOGLQJ 9,023,500 -- -- 9,023,500 96,706 14,020 -- 110,726 8,912,774 
Bursa Building 8,500,000 -- -- 8,500,000 115,204 16,696 -- 131,900 8,368,100 
$QNDUD�%DKoHOLHYOHU�%XLOGLQJ�� 6,681,356 -- -- 6,681,356 149,415 21,667 -- 171,082 6,510,274 
Kocaeli Building 6,519,193 -- -- 6,519,193 70,785 10,300 -- 81,085 6,438,108 
øVWDQEXO�)DWLK�%XLOGLQJ 6,380,000 -- -- 6,380,000 120,132 17,416 -- 137,548 6,242,452 
øVWDQEXO�&DGGHERVWDQ�%XLOGLQJ 6,300,000 -- -- 6,300,000 335,759 48,857 -- 384,616 5,915,384 
6DNDU\D�$GDSD]DUÕ�%XLOGLQJ 5,960,000 -- -- 5,960,000 75,947 11,010 -- 86,957 5,873,043 
$QNDUD�%DKoHOLHYOHU�%XLOGLQJ�� 5,684,746 -- -- 5,684,746 49,478 7,173 -- 56,651 5,628,095 
øVWDQEXO�$WDN|\�%XLOGLQJ 5,061,500 -- -- 5,061,500 95,342 13,817 -- 109,159 4,952,341 
øVWDQEXO�1LúDQWDúÕ�%XLOGLQJ 5,000,000 -- -- 5,000,000 34,592 5,033 -- 39,625 4,960,375 
Halkbank Finance Tower 126,548,795 -- -- 126,548,795 2,277,544 455,841 -- 2,733,385 123,815,410 
Park Dedeman Levent Hotel 91,186,481 -- -- 91,186,481 655,666 981,708 -- 1,637,374 89,549,107 
.RFDHOL�ùHNHUSÕQDU�Banking Center  67,860,443 -- -- 67,860,443 880,907 928,341 -- 1,809,248 66,051,195 
(VNLúHKLU± Panaroma Plus Project - Block D 1,644,422 -- -- 1,644,422 10,361 21,346 -- 31,707 1,612,715 
(VNLúHKLU± Panaroma Plus Project ± Block B17 644,194 -- -- 644,194 2,197 8,362 -- 10,559 633,635 
Buildings total 490,095,436 25,425 -- 490,120,861 6,688,777 2,811,017 -- 9,499,794 480,621,067 
          
øVWDQEXO�)LQDQFLDO�&HQWHU�3URMHFW��E� 269,326,546 1,382,560 -- 270,709,106 -- -- -- -- 270,709,106 
.RFDHOL�ùHNHUSÕQDU Office Project (c) 36,367,976 2,596,610 -- 38,964,586 -- -- -- -- 38,964,586 
Total investment property under construction 305,694,522 3,979,170 -- 309,673,692 -- -- -- -- 309,673,692 
          
Total 795,789,958 4,004,595 -- 799,794,553 6,688,777 2,811,017 -- 9,499,794 790,294,759 

(a) In the current period, due to Hotel Project on 6DOÕSD]DUÕ�%XLOGLQJ, agreement stamp tax and other duties amounting to TL 24,495 and other expenses amounting to TL 930 are capitalized on the 
cost of project. 

(b) In the current period, due to øVWDQEXO�)LQDQFLDO�&HQWHU Project, architecture and engineering expenses amounting to TL 962,463, project management expenses amounting to TL 126,502 agreement 
stamp tax and other duties amounting to TL 153,575 and other expenses amounting to TL 140,020 are capitalized on the cost of project. 

(c) ,Q�WKH�FXUUHQW�SHULRG��GXH�WR�SODQQHG�EDQNLQJ�EDVH�RQ�.RFDHOL�ùHNHUSÕQDU�Office Project, construction expenses amounting to TL 2,203,301 agreement stamp tax and other duties amounting to TL 
33,165 and other expenses amounting to TL 360,144 are capitalized on the cost of project. 
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10. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 

As at 31 December 2015, net book values and fair values of investment properties are as follows: 

Investment property 
Cost at 

31 December 2014 Additions Transfers 
Cost at  

31 December 2015 
Amortisation at  

31 December 2014 Additions Disposals 
Depreciation at  

31 December 2015 
Net book value at  

31 December 2015 
          
øVWDQEXO�.DUDN|\�%XLOGLQJ 23,500,000 -- -- 23,500,000 160,367 38,383 -- 198,750 23,301,250 
øVWDQEXO�6DOÕSD]DUÕ�%XLOGLQJ 22,000,000 -- -- 22,000,000 288,450 69,039 -- 357,489 21,642,511 
ø]PLU�.RQDN�%XLOGLQJ-1 13,400,000 -- -- 13,400,000 269,006 64,682 -- 333,688 13,066,312 
$QNDUD�.Õ]ÕOD\�%XLOGLQJ� 12,475,237 -- -- 12,475,237 133,635 31,985 -- 165,620 12,309,617 
øVWDQEXO�%H\R÷OX�%XLOGLQJ 12,000,000 -- -- 12,000,000 55,647 13,317 -- 68,964 11,931,036 
øVWDQEXO�%HúLNWDú�%XLOGLQJ 11,893,840 -- -- 11,893,840 73,480 17,587 -- 91,067 11,802,773 
øVWDQEXO�Etiler Building 11,000,000 -- -- 11,000,000 51,065 12,222 -- 63,287 10,936,713 
øVWDQEXO�ùLúOL�%XLOGLQJ 11,000,000 -- -- 11,000,000 159,578 38,194 -- 197,772 10,802,228 
ø]PLU�.RQDN�%XLOGLQJ-2 10,290,000 -- -- 10,290,000 113,922 27,392 -- 141,314 10,148,686 
$QNDUD�%DúNHQW�%XLOGLQJ 9,541,729 -- -- 9,541,729 81,326 19,465 -- 100,791 9,440,938 
øVWDQEXO�%DNÕUN|\�%XLOGLQJ 9,023,500 -- -- 9,023,500 78,030 18,676 -- 96,706 8,926,794 
Bursa Building 8,500,000 -- -- 8,500,000 92,963 22,241 -- 115,204 8,384,796 
$QNDUD�%DKoHOLHYOHU�%XLOGLQJ�� 6,681,356 -- -- 6,681,356 120,553 28,862 -- 149,415 6,531,941 
Kocaeli Building 6,519,193 -- -- 6,519,193 57,064 13,721 -- 70,785 6,448,408 
øVWDQEXO�)DWLK�%XLOGLQJ 6,380,000 -- -- 6,380,000 96,932 23,200 -- 120,132 6,259,868 
øVWDQEXO�&DGGHERVWDQ�%XLOGLQJ 6,300,000 -- -- 6,300,000 270,675 65,084 -- 335,759 5,964,241 
6DNDU\D�$GDSD]DUÕ�%XLOGLQJ 5,960,000 -- -- 5,960,000 61,280 14,667 -- 75,947 5,884,053 
$QNDUD�%DKoHOLHYOHU�%XLOGLQJ�� 5,684,746 -- -- 5,684,746 39,923 9,555 -- 49,478 5,635,268 
øVWDQEXO�$WDN|\�%XLOGLQJ 5,061,500 -- -- 5,061,500 76,937 18,405 -- 95,342 4,966,158 
øVWDQEXO�1LúDQWDúÕ�%XLOGLQJ 5,000,000 -- -- 5,000,000 27,887 6,705 -- 34,592 4,965,408 
Halkbank Finance Tower 126,548,795 -- -- 126,548,795 1,670,311 607,233 -- 2,277,544 124,271,251 
Park Dedeman Levent Hotel -- -- 91,186,481 91,186,481 -- 655,666 -- 655,666 90,530,815 
Kocaeli ùHNHUSÕQDU�%DQNLQJ�&HQWHU  -- -- 67,860,443 67,860,443 -- 880,907 -- 880,907 66,979,536 
(VNLúHKLU± Panaroma Plus Project - Block D -- 1,644,422 -- 1,644,422 -- 10,361 -- 10,361 1,634,061 
(VNLúHKLU± Panaroma Plus Project ± Block B17 -- 644,194 -- 644,194 -- 2,197 -- 2,197 641,997 
Buildings total 328,759,896 2,288,616 159,046,924 490,095,436 3,979,031 2,709,746 -- 6,688,777 483,406,659 
          
Levent Hotel Project (a) 63,656,372 27,530,109 (91,186,481) -- -- -- -- -- -- 
øVWDQEXO�)LQDQFLDO�&HQWHU�3URMHFW��E� 261,705,522 7,621,024 -- 269,326,546 -- -- -- -- 269,326,546 
.RFDHOL�ùHNHUSÕQDU�Office Project (c) 63,388,602 40,839,817 (67,860,443) 36,367,976 -- -- -- -- 36,367,976 
Total investment property under construction 388,750,496 75,990,950 (159,046,924) 305,694,522 -- -- -- -- 305,694,522 
          
Total 717,510,392 78,279,566 -- 795,789,958 3,979,031 2,709,746 -- 6,688,777 789,101,181 

(a) In the current period, due to Hotel Project on Levent Land, construction expenses amounting to TL 25,912,832, project management expenses amounting to TL 631,812 agreement stamp tax and 
other duties amounting to TL 885,195 and other expenses amounting to TL 100,270 are capitalized on the cost of project. 

(b) ,Q� WKH� FXUUHQW� SHULRG�� GXH� WR� øVWDQEXO� )LQDQFLDO� &HQWHU� 3URMHFW�� SURMHFW�PDQDJHPHQW� H[SHQVHV� DPRXQWLQJ� WR� TL 315,058, architecture and engineering expenses amounting to TL 5,640,950, 
agreement stamp tax and other duties amounting to TL 1,525,304 and other expenses amounting to TL 139,712 are capitalized on the cost of project. 

(c) ,Q�WKH�FXUUHQW�SHULRG��GXH�WR�SODQQHG�EDQNLQJ�EDVH�RQ�.RFDHOL�ùHNHUSÕQDU�Office Project, architecture and engineering expenses amounting to TL 1,536,352, construction expenses amounting to TL 
39,189,063, agreement stamp tax and other duties amounting to TL 37,757 and other expenses amounting to TL 76,645 are capitalized on the cost of project. 
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10. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 

As at 30 September 2016 and 31 December 2015, net book values and fair values of investment properties are as follows: 
 30 September 2016 31 December 2015 
Investment property Net book value Fair value Net book value Fair value 
     
,VWDQEXO�.DUDN|\�%XLOGLQJ 23,272,436 30,000,000 23,301,250 30,000,000 
,VWDQEXO�6DOÕSD]DUÕ Building 21,616,109 46,680,000 21,642,511 46,680,000 
ø]PLU�.RQDN�%XLOGLQJ�� 13,017,756 21,382,200 13,066,312 21,382,200 
$QNDUD�.Õ]ÕOD\�%XLOGLQJ� 12,285,606 16,200,000 12,309,617 16,200,000 
,VWDQEXO�%H\R÷OX�%XLOGLQJ 11,921,038 22,000,000 11,931,036 22,000,000 
,VWDQEXO�%HúLNWDú�%XLOGLQJ 11,789,571 16,030,000 11,802,773 16,030,000 
Istanbul Etiler Building 10,927,538 16,200,000 10,936,713 16,200,000 
,VWDQEXO�ùLúOL�%XLOGLQJ 10,773,556 14,325,000 10,802,228 14,325,000 
ø]PLU�.RQDN�%XLOGLQJ�� 10,128,123 13,470,000 10,148,686 13,470,000 
$QNDUD�%DúNHQW�%XLOGLQJ 9,426,326 11,854,000 9,440,938 11,000,000 
,VWDQEXO�%DNÕUN|\�%XLOGLQJ 8,912,774 20,865,000 8,926,794 20,865,000 
Bursa Building 8,368,100 11,860,000 8,384,796 11,860,000 
$QNDUD�%DKoHOLHYOHU Building 1 6,510,274 9,000,000 6,531,941 9,000,000 
Kocaeli Building 6,438,108 10,544,000 6,448,408 10,544,000 
Istanbul Fatih Building 6,242,452 10,000,000 6,259,868 10,000,000 
Istanbul Caddebostan Building 5,915,384 18,690,000 5,964,241 18,690,000 
6DNDU\D�$GDSD]DUÕ�%XLOGLQJ 5,873,043 9,032,500 5,884,053 9,032,500 
$QNDUD�%DKoHOLHYOHU�%XLOGLQJ�� 5,628,095 7,650,000 5,635,268 7,650,000 
,VWDQEXO�$WDN|\�%XLOGLQJ 4,952,341 10,975,000 4,966,158 10,975,000 
,VWDQEXO�1LúDQWDúÕ�%XLOGLQJ 4,960,375 8,200,000 4,965,408 8,200,000 
Halkbank Finance Tower  123,815,410 181,205,360 124,271,251 204,739,880 
Park Dedeman Levent Hotel 89,549,107 145,107,568 90,530,815 145,107,568 
.RFDHOL�ùHNHUSÕQDU�%DQNLQJ�&HQWHU� 66,051,195 82,521,600 66,979,536 82,521,600 
(VNLúHKLU± Panaroma Plus Project - Block D 1,612,715 4,177,025 1,634,061 4,177,025 
(VNLúHKLU± Panaroma Plus Project ± Block B17 633,635 649,863 641,997 649,863 
Buildings total 480,621,067 738,619,116 483,406,659 761,299,636 
     
øVWDQEXO�)LQDQFLDO�&HQWHU Project 270,709,106  632,096,740 269,326,546 632,096,740 
ùHNHUSÕQDU�2IILFH�3URMHFW (a) 38,964,586 67,592,931 36,367,976 67,592,931 
Total investment property under construction 309,673,692  699,689,671 305,694,522 699,689,671 
     
Total 790,294,759  1,438,308,787 789,101,181 1,460,989,307 

(a) )DLU�YDOXH�RI�.RFDHOL�ùHNHUSÕQDU�Office Project was determined based on construction level on 7 December 2015. There is not any impairment provided as at 30 September 2016 due 
to the fact that when the project is finished, the estimated value of project would be TL 75,103,257. 
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10. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 

Buildings 

i. IVWDQEXO�.DUDN|\�Building 

,VWDQEXO�.DUDN|\�%XLOGLQJ�LV�UHJLVWHUHG�WR�%H\R÷OX�øVWDQEXO�0�H\\HW]DGH�QHLJKERXUKRRG�ZLWK�����
city block and 3rd plot. It is a massive block office building with a place of 583 m2. 

The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 23,500,000 according to the report 
dated 13 November 2009 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB and it was 
GHYROYHG�DV�FDSLWDO�LQ�NLQG�RQ����2FWREHU������E\�+DONEDQN��7KH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�.DUDN|\�%XLOGLQJ�KDV�
been determined as TL 30,000,000 according to market value approach based on the report dated 16 
November 2015 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There is no restriction 
RQ�WKH�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\��7KH�&RPSDQ\�UHQWHG�WKLV�SURSHUW\�WR�+DONEDQN�DQG�+DON�)DNWRULQJ�$ù��
The Company earned TL 1,039,500 of rental income for the period started 1 January 2016 and ended 
30 September 2016. 

ii. øVWDQEXO�6DOÕSD]DUÕ�Building 

,VWDQEXO� 6DOÕSD]DUÕ�%XLOGLQJ� LV� UHJLVWHUHG� WR�%H\R÷OX�øVWDQEXO�.ÕOÕoDOL� QHLJKERXUKRRG�ZLWK� ��� FLW\�
block and 14th plot. It is a 1,196 m2 of land. 

The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 22,000,000 according to the report 
dated 13 November 2009 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB and it was 
devolved as capital in kind on 28 October 2010 by Halkbank. The faLU�YDOXH�RI�6DOÕSD]DUÕ�%XLOGLQJ�
has been determined as TL 46,680,000 according to market value approach based on the report dated 
30 November 2015 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There is no 
restriction on the investment property. The Company earned TL 291,748 of rental income for the 
period started 1 January 2016 and ended 30 September 2016. The Company signed an agreement 
ZLWK�%HULO�2WHOFLOLN�7XUL]P�YH�7LF��/WG��ùWL��WR�UHQW�6DOÕSD]DUÕ Building as a hotel. In the renovation 
period, Euro 10,000 + VAT have been collected monthly during 12- month alteration period. 

iii. ø]PLU�.RQDN�Building-1 

,]PLU�.RQDN�&RUSRUDWH�%XLOGLQJ�LV�UHJLVWHUHG�WR�.RQDN�ø]PLU�$NGHQL]�QHLJKERXUKRRG�ZLWK�����FLW\�
block and 17rd plot. It is a massive block bank building with a place of 739 m2. For the independent 
sections of the property there is no construction servitude. 

The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 13,400,000 according to the report 
dated 9 December 2009 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB and it was 
devolved as capital in kind on 2 November 2010 by Halkbank. The fair value of Konak Corporate 
Building has been determined as TL 21,382,200 according to market value approach based on the 
report dated 20 November 2015 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There 
is no restriction on the investment property. The Company rented this property to Halkbank. The 
Company earned TL 945,000 of rental income for the period started 1 January 2016 and ended 30 
September 2016. 
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10. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 

Buildings (continued) 

iv. $QNDUD�.Õ]ÕOD\�Building  

Ankara .Õ]ÕOD\ %XLOGLQJ�LV�UHJLVWHUHG�WR�dDQND\D�$QNDUD�&XPKXUL\HW�QHLJKERXUKRRG�ZLWK������FLW\�
block and 14th plot. It is a massive block apartment with a place of 272 m2. 

The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 12,475,237 according to the report 
dated 11 February 2010 prepared by the experts assigned by Commercial Court and it was devolved 
DV�FDSLWDO�LQ�NLQG�RQ����2FWREHU������E\�+DONEDQN��7KH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�.Õ]ÕOD\�%XLOGLQJ�DQG�6HUYLFH�
Building has been determined as TL 16,200,000 according to market value approach based on the 
report dated 18 December 2015 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There 
is no restriction on the investment property. The Company has rented this property to HalkBank. The 
Company earned TL 954,000 of rental income for the period started 1 January 2016 and ended 30 
September 2016.  

v. øVWDQEXO�%H\R÷OX�Building 

,VWDQEXO� %H\R÷OX� %XLOGLQJ� LV� UHJLVWHUHG� WR� %H\R÷OX�øVWDQEXO� +�VH\LQD÷D� QHLJKERXUKRRG�ZLWK� ����
city block and 8th plot. It is a massive office block with a place of 195 m2. 

The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 12,000,000 according to the report 
dated 9 December 2009 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB and it was 
devolveG�DV�FDSLWDO�LQ�NLQG�RQ����2FWREHU������E\�+DONEDQN��7KH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�%H\R÷OX�%XLOGLQJ�KDV�
been determined as TL 22,000,000 according to market value approach based on the report dated 26 
November 2015 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There is no restriction 
on the investment property. The Company rented 2nd, 3rd, 4th, 5th and 6th floors of this property to 
Turkish Treasury and other divisions to Halkbank. The Company earned TL 1,038,905 of rental 
income for the period started 1 January 2016 and ended 30 September 2016. 

vi. øVWDQEXO�%HúLNWDú�Building 

,VWDQEXO�%HúLNWDú�%XLOGLQJ�LV�UHJLVWHUHG�WR�%HúLNWDú�øVWDQEXO�6LQDQSDúD�QHLJKERXUKRRG�ZLWK�����FLW\�
block and 93rd plot. It is a massive block office building with a place of 267 m2. 

The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 11,893,840 according to the report 
dated 3 February 2010 prepared by the experts assigned by Commercial Court and it was devolved 
as capital in kind on 27 October 2010 by Halkbank. The fair value oI�%HúLNWDú�%XLOGLQJ�KDV�EHHQ�
determined as TL 16,030,000 according to market value approach based on the report dated 25 
November 2015 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There is no restriction 
on the investment property. The Company rented this property to Halkbank. The Company earned 
TL 900,000 of rental income for the period started 1 January 2016 and ended 30 September 2016. 

vii. øVWDQEXO�(WLOHU�%XLOGLQJ 

,VWDQEXO�(WLOHU�%XLOGLQJ�LV�UHJLVWHUHG�WR�%HúLNWDú�øVWDQEXO��st Region with 578 city block and 3rd plot. 
It is a massive house with a place of 617 m2. 

The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 11,000,000 according to the report 
dated 13 November 2009 prepared by the experts assigned by Commercial Court and it was 
devolved as capital in kind on 27 October 2010 by Halkbank. The fair value of Etiler Building has 
been determined as TL 16,200,000 according to market value approach based on the report dated 25 
November 2015 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There is no restriction 
on the investment property. The Company rented this property to Halkbank. The Company earned 
TL 702,000 of rental income for the period started 1 January 2016 and ended 30 September 2016. 
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10. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 

Buildings (continued) 

viii. øVWDQEXO�ùLúOL�Building 

øVWDQEXO�ùLúOL�%XLOGLQJ�LV�UHJLVWHUHG�WR�ùLúOL�øVWDQEXO�0HúUXWL\HW�QHLJKERXUKRRG�ZLWK������SODWH������
city block and 62nd plot. It is a massive block apartment with a place of 200 m2. 

The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 11,000,000 according to the report 
dated 9 December 2009 prepared by the experts assigned by Commercial Court and it was devolved 
as capital in kind on 2 NovembeU� ����� E\� +DONEDQN�� 7KH� IDLU� YDOXH� RI� ùLúOL� %XLOGLQJ� KDV� EHHQ�
determined as TL 14,325,000 according to market value approach based on the report dated 25 
November 2015 prepared by real estate Appraisal Company licensed by CMB. There is no 
restriction on the investment property. The Company rented this property to Halkbank. The 
Company earned TL 693,000 of rental income for the period started 1 January 2016 and ended 30 
September 2016. 

ix. ø]PLU�.RQDN�Building -2 

Izmir Konak %XLOGLQJ�LV�UHJLVWHUHG�WR�.RQDN�ø]PLU�$NGHQL]�QHLJKERXUKRRG�ZLWK������FLW\�EORFN�DQG�
15rd plot. It is a massive block bank building with a place of 616 m2. 

The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 10,290,000 according to the report 
dated 9 December 2009 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB and it was 
devolved as capital in kind on 2 November 2010 by Halkbank. The fair value of Konak Building has 
been determined as TL 13,470,000 according to market value approach based on the report dated 20 
November 2015 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There is no restriction 
on the investment property. The Company rented 180 m2 of ground floor and 400 m2 of first floor to 
+DON�6LJRUWD�$ù��³+DON�6LJRUWD´�������P2 of first floor to Halk Hayat Emeklilik and other divisions 
to Halkbank. The Company earned TL 661,383 of rental income for the period started 1 January 
2016 and ended 30 September 2016. 

x. $QNDUD�%DúNHQW�%XLOGLQJ 

$QNDUD� %DúNHQW� %XLOGLQJ� DQG� 6HUYLFH� %XLOGLQJ� LV� UHJLVWHUHG� WR� dDQND\D�$QNDUD� &XPKXUL\HW�
neighbourhood with 1046 city block and 27th plot. It is a massive block apartment with a place of 
205 m2. 

The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 9,541,729 according to the report 
dated 11 February 2010 prepared by the experts assigned by Commercial Court and it was devolved 
as capital in kind on 28 October 2010 by Halkbank. The fair YDOXH�RI�%DúNHQW�%XLOGLQJ�KDV�EHHQ�
determined as TL 11,854,000 according to market value approach based on the report dated 23 May 
2016 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There is no restriction on the 
investment property. The Company rented this property to Halkbank DQG� &HGD� $NDU\DNÕW. The 
Company earned TL 760,346 of rental income for the period started 1 January 2016 and ended 30 
September 2016. 

xi. øVWDQEXO�%DNÕUN|\�%XLOGLQJ 

 øVWDQEXO�%DNÕUN|\ %XLOGLQJ�LV�UHJLVWHUHG�WR�%DNÕUN|\�øVWDQEXO�=H\WLQOLN�QHLJKERXUKRRG�ZLWK�����FLW\�
block and 29th plot. It is an eight-storey massive block apartment with a place of 213 m2. 

The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 9,023,500 according to the report 
that was prepared at 5 February 2010 by the experts assigned by Commercial Court and it was 
devolved as capital in kind at 28 October 2010 by Halkbank. According to 10 December 2015 dated 
report of a real estate valuation firm was licensed b\�&0%��WKH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�%DNÕUN|\�%XLOGLQJ�KDV�
been determined as TL 20,865,000 according to market value approach. There is no restriction on 
the investment property. The Company has rented this property to Halkbank. The Company earned 
TL 990,000 of rental income for the period started 1 January 2016 and ended 30 September 2016. 
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10. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 

Buildings (continued) 

xii. Bursa Building 

%XUVD�%XLOGLQJ�LV�UHJLVWHUHG�WR�2VPDQJD]L�%XUVD�.D\ÕKDQ�QHLJKERXUKRRG�ZLWK������FLW\�EORFN�DQG�
1st plot. It is a seven-storey massive block apartment with a place of 306 m2. 

The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 8,500,000 according to the report 
dated 18 January 2010 prepared by the experts assigned by Commercial Court and it was devolved 
as capital in kind on 28 October 2010 by Halkbank. The fair value of Bursa Building has been 
determined as TL 11,860,000 according to market value approach based on the report dated 3 
December 2015 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There is no restriction 
on the investment property. The Company rented this property to Halkbank. The Company earned 
TL 664,200 of rental income for the period started 1 January 2016 and ended 30 September 2016. 

xiii. $QNDUD�%DKoHOLHYOHU�Building-1 

$QNDUD� %DKoHOLHYOHU� %XLOGLQJ-�� LV� UHJLVWHUHG� WR� dDQND\D�$QNDUD� <XNDUÕ� %DKoHOLHYOHU�
neighbourhood with 2758 city block and 29th plot. It is a five-storey massive block apartment with a 
place of 612 m2. 

The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 6,681,356 according to the report 
dated 11 February 2010 prepared by the experts assigned by Commercial Court and it was devolved 
DV�FDSLWDO�LQ�NLQG�RQ����2FWREHU������E\�+DONEDQN��7KH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�$QNDUD�%DKoHOLHYOHU�%XLOGLQJ�
has been determined as TL 9,000,000 according to market value approach based on the report dated 
18 December 2015 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There is no 
restriction on the investment property. The Company rented this property to Halkbank. The 
Company earned TL 501,300 of rental income for the period started 1 January 2016 and ended 30 
September 2016. 

xiv. Kocaeli Building 

.RFDHOL�%XLOGLQJ�LV�UHJLVWHUHG�WR�ø]PLW�.RFDHOL�gPHUD÷D�QHLJKERXUKRRG�ZLWK�����FLW\�EORFN�DQG���th 
plot. It is a massive block building with a place of 284 m2. 

The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 6,519,193 according to the report 
dated 18 January 2010 prepared by the experts assigned by Commercial Court and it was devolved 
as capital in kind on 28 October 2010 by Halkbank. The fair value of Kocaeli Building has been 
determined as TL 10,544,000 according to market value approach based on the report dated 26 
October 2015 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There is no restriction on 
the investment property. The Company rented this property to Halkbank. The Company earned TL 
630,000 of rental income for the period started 1 January 2016 and ended 30 September 2016. 
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10. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 

Buildings (continued) 

xv. øVWDQEXO�)Dtih Building 

øVWDQEXO�&RPPHUFLDO�%XLOGLQJ� LV� UHJLVWHUHG� WR�)DWLK�øVWDQEXO�+RE\DU�QHLJKERXUKRRG�ZLWK�����FLW\�
block and 2nd plot. It is a massive block bank building with a place of 208 m2. 

The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 6,380,000 according to the report 
dated 9 December 2009 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB and it was 
devolved as capital in kind on 28 October 2010 by Halkbank. The fair value of Fatih Building has 
been determined as TL 10,000,000 according to market value approach based on the report dated 26 
November 2015 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There is no restriction 
on the investment property. The Company rented this property to Halkbank. The Company earned 
TL 450,000 of rental income for the period started 1 January 2016 and ended 30 September 2016. 

xvi. øVWDQEXO�&DGGHERVWDQ�Building 

øVWDQEXO�&DGGHERVWDQ�%XLOGLQJ� LV� UHJLVWHUHG� WR�.DGÕN|\�øVWDQEXO�(UHQN|\ neighbourhood with 368 
city block and 25th plot. It is a massive block apartment with a garden with a place of 902 m2. 

The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 6,300,000 according to the report 
dated 11 January 2010 prepared by the experts assigned by Commercial Court and it was devolved 
as capital in kind on 3 November 2010 by Halkbank. The fair value of Caddebostan Building has 
been determined as TL 18,690,000 according to market value approach based on the report dated 2 
November 2015 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There is no restriction 
on the investment property. The Company rented this property to Halkbank. The Company earned 
TL 57,558 of rental income for the period started 1 January 2016 and ended 30 September 2016. The 
agreement between the Company and Halkbank terminated on 25 January 2016. 

xvii. 6DNDU\D�$GDSD]DUÕ�Building 

6DNDU\D�$GDSD]DUÕ�%XLOGLQJ�LV�UHJLVWHUHG�WR�$GDSD]DUÕ�6DNDU\D�&XPKXUL\HW�QHLJKERXUKRRG�ZLWK�����
city block and 167th plot. It is a land with a place of 3,000 m2. 

The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 5,960,000 according to the report 
dated 11 January 2010 prepared by the experts assigned by Commercial Court and it was devolved 
as capital in kind RQ����2FWREHU������E\�+DONEDQN��7KH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�$GDSD]DUÕ�%XLOGLQJ�KDV�EHHQ�
determined as TL 9,032,500 according to market value approach based on the report dated 9 October 
2015 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There is no restriction on the 
investment property. The Company rented this property to Halkbank. The Company earned TL 
575,370 of rental income for the period started 1 January 2016 and ended 30 September 2016. 

xviii. $QNDUD�%DKoHOLHYOHU�%XLOGLQJ-2 

$QNDUD� %DKoHOLHYOHU� %XLOGLng -�� LV� UHJLVWHUHG� WR� dDQND\D�$QNDUD� <XNDUÕ� %DKoHOLHYOHU�
neighbourhood with 2763 city block and 10th plot. It is a stone apartment with a place of 610 m2. 

The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 5,684,746 according to the report 
dated 11 February 2010 prepared by the experts assigned by Commercial Court and it was devolved 
DV�FDSLWDO�LQ�NLQG�RQ����2FWREHU������E\�+DONEDQN��7KH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�%DKoHOLHYOHU�%XLOGLQJ�KDV�EHHQ�
determined as TL 7,650,000 according to market value approach based on the report dated 18 
December 2015 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There is no restriction 
on the investment property. The &RPSDQ\�UHQWHG�WKLV�SURSHUW\�WR�.RWRQ�0D÷D]DFÕOÕN�7HNVWLO�6DQD\L�
YH�7LFDUHW�$�ù��³.RWRQ´���7KH�&RPSany earned TL 495,065 of rental income for the period started 1 
January 2016 and ended 30 September 2016. 
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10. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 

Buildings (continued) 

xix. øVWDQEXO�$WDN|\�Building 

øVWDQEXO�$WDN|\�%XLOGLQJ�LV�UHJLVWHUHG�WR�%DNÕUN|\�øVWDQEXO�Kartaltepe neighbourhood with 115 city 
block and 174th plot. It is a massive block bank building with a place of 515 m2. 

The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 5,061,500 according to the report 
dated 5 February 2010 prepared by the experts assigned by Commercial Court and it was devolved 
DV� FDSLWDO� LQ� NLQG� RQ� ���2FWREHU� �����E\�+DONEDQN��7KH� IDLU� YDOXH� RI�$WDN|\�%XLOGLQJ� KDV� EHHQ�
determined as TL 10,975,000 according to market value approach based on the report dated 26 
November 2015 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There is no restriction 
on the investment property. The Company rented this property to Halkbank. The Company earned 
TL 555,750 of rental income for the period started 1 January 2016 and ended 30 September 2016. 

xx. øVWDQEXO�1LúDQWDúÕ�Building 

øVWDQEXO�1LúDQWDúÕ�%XLOGLQJ�LV�UHJLVWHUHG�WR�ùLúOL�øVWDQEXO�+DODVNDUJD]L�QHLJKERXUKRRG�ZLWK�����FLW\�
block and 14th plot. It is an eight-storey massive apartment with a restaurant with a place of 221.50 
m2. Related property is classified as a cultural asset that is needed to be protected. 

The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 5,000,000 according to the report 
dated 3 February 2010 prepared by the experts assigned by Commercial Court and it was devolved 
as capital in kind on 2 November 2010 by +DONEDQN��7KH�IDLU�YDOXH�RI�1LúDQWDúÕ�%XLOGLQJ�KDV�EHHQ�
determined as TL 8,200,000 according to market value approach based on the report dated 24 
November 2015 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There is no restriction 
on the investment property. The Company rented this property to Halkbank. The Company earned 
TL 378,000 of rental income for the period started 1 January 2016 and ended 30 September 2016. 

xxi. Halkbank Finance Tower 

Halkbank Finance Tower LV� UHJLVWHUHG� WR�$WDúHKLU�.�o�NEDNNDON|\�QHLJKERXUKRRG�ZLWK������FLW\�
block and 24th plot. It is a land with a place of 7,995 m2. The investment property has been purchased 
IURP�WKH�.�<DSÕ�*D\ULPHQNXO�*HOLúWLUPH�øQú��6DQ��YH�'Õú�7LF��$�ù��'XH�WR�UHODWHG�DJUHHPHQW�� WKH�
payment of half of the cost value included VAT, TL 72,275,000 has been made concurrently transfer 
of 103 unit land register with servitude. 25% portion of sale price TL 36,137,500 was paid on 13 
June 2012 and the last payment portion of sale price TL 33,237,500 was paid on 30 July 2012. The 
other part of payment TL 2,900,000 due to purchase is net off with the other transactions with the K 
<DSÕ�*D\ULPHQNXO�*HOLúWLUPH�øQú��6DQ��YH�'Õú�7LF��$ù��:LWK�WKH�SD\PHQW�RI�ILUst part, register fee of 
TL 2,070,600, settling expense of TL 509,253 and finance expense of TL 1,466,224 of the loan 
related with land are added to the building cost. TL 150,000,000 of mortgage has been given as 
collateral for the loan which obtained from the Halkbank (Note 13). 

The fair value of Halkbank Finance Tower has been determined as TL 181,205,360 according to 
market value approach based on the report dated 16 November 2015 prepared by real estate appraisal 
company licensed by CMB. The Company has recognized TL 11,391,900 of rental income for the 
period started 1 January 2016 and ended 30 September 2016. 
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10. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 

Buildings (continued) 

xxii. Park Dedeman Levent Hotel 

/HYHQW�/DQG�LV�UHJLVWHUHG�WR�0HFLGL\HN|\�ùLúOL neighbourhood with 1957 city block and 6th plot. The 
land is place of 2,791 m2. The value of investment property has been determined as TL 25,799,000 
according to the report dated 22 February 2010 by the experts assigned by Commercial Court and 
transferred to the Company as capital in kind on 3 November 2010 by Halkbank. The Hotel Project 
on the land has been started with the agreement betZHHQ�'HGHPDQ�7XUL]P�<|QHWLPL�$ù��The fair 
value of Park Dedeman Levent Hotel has been determined as TL 145,107,568 according to market 
value approach based on the report dated 7 December 2015 prepared by real estate appraisal 
company licensed by CMB. There is no restriction on the investment property.  

The Company has recognized TL 6,887,850 of rental income for the period started 1 January 2016 
and ended 30 September 2016. 

xxiii. .RFDHOL�ùHNHUSÕQDU�Banking Center 

ùHNHUSÕQDU�%DQNLQJ�&HQWHU LV�UHJLVWHUHG�WR�ùHNHUSÕQDU�.RFDHOL�QHLJKERXUKRRG with 420 block and 26 
plot. There is no restriction on the investment property. Occupancy permit for ùHNHUSÕQDU�%DQNLQJ�
Center is received as of 14.10.2015. Within the frame of the goodwill agreement signed with 
Halkbank on 21 May 2015, a 10-year lease agreement has been signed to be valid after 15 April 
2015 with an amount of TL 442,625+VAT. The fair value of the investment property has been 
determined as TL 82,521,600 according to market value approach based on the report dated 7 
December 2015 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. 

The Company has recognized TL 4,131,019 of rental income for the period started 1 January 2016 
and ended 30 September 2016. 

xxiv. (VNLúHKLU± Panaroma Plus Project - D Block 

(VNLúHKLU� %ORFN�'� LV� UHJLVWHUHG� WR� 2GXQSD]DUÕ�(VNLúHKLU� QHLJKERXUKRRG�ZLWK� ������� EORFN� DQG� ��
SORW��7KHUH�LV�QR�UHVWULFWLRQ�RQ�WKH�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\��2FFXSDQF\�SHUPLW�IRU�(VNLúHKLU�%ORFN�'�LV�
received as of 28.08.2015. The Company signed 10-\HDU�OHDVH�DJUHHPHQW�ZLWK�0LJURV�7LFDUHW�$�ù��
on 20.08.2015. Within the frame of related lease agreement, starting date of leasing is determined as 
same date with opening. The fair value of the investment property has been determined as TL 
4,177,025 according to market value approach based on the report dated 2 October 2015 prepared by 
real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. The Company earned TL 108,833 of rental income 
for the period started 1 January 2016 and ended 30 September 2016. 

xxv. (VNLúHKLU± Panaroma Plus Project - B17 Block 

(VNLúHKLU� %ORFN� %� LV� UHJLVWHUHG� WR� 2GXQSD]DUÕ�(VNLúHKLU� QHLJKERXUKRRG�ZLWK� ������� EORFN� DQG� ��
SORW��7KHUH�LV�QR�UHVWULFWLRQ�RQ�WKH�LQYHVWPHQW�SURSHUW\��2FFXSDQF\�SHUPLW�IRU�(VNLúHKLU�%ORFN�%�LV�
received as of 02.11.2015. The Company signed a lease agreement amounted TL 6,000+VAT with a 
real person on 01 November 2015. The fair value of the investment property has been determined as 
TL 649,863 according to market value approach based on the report dated 2 October 2015 prepared 
by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. The Company earned TL 54,000 of rental 
income for the period started 1 January 2016 and ended 30 September 2016. 
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10. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 

Investment property under construction 

øVWDQEXO�)LQDQFLDO�&HQWHU�3URMHFW 

$WDúHKLU /DQG� LV� UHJLVWHUHG� WR�hPUDQL\H�øVWDQEXO�.�o�NEDNNDON|\� QHLJKERXUKRRG�ZLWK� ���� city 
block and 3rd plot. It has a place of 28,732 m2. The value of the investment property has been 
determined as TL 229,846,920 according to the report dated 18 January 2010 prepared by the experts 
assigned by Commercial Court and it was devolved as capital in kind at 28 October 2010 by 
+DONEDQN�� 7KH� IDLU� YDOXH� RI�$WDúHKLU� /DQG� KDV� EHHQ� GHWHUPLQHG� DV�7/� 632,096,740 according to 
market value approach based on the report dated 19 November 2015 prepared by real estate appraisal 
company licensed by CMB. There is no restriction on the investment property. The Company 
applied for construction licence as at 31 December 2014. 

Istanbul Finance Center project is developed under coordination of Ministery of Environment and 
Urbanisation of Turkish Republic. A protocol and initial confirmation is signed between the 
Company and the Ministry regarding the administration process of the Project. 

At 25 December 2012, previous 3323 city block and 3rd plot of the Company has revised at the new 
partition plan of the Project and new land is registered as 3328 block 4th plot and 3328 block 11th 
plot. Plots have surface area of 16,337 m2 and 12,395 m2, 135,835 m2 and 102,953 m2 constructions 
areas respectively as 3328 block 4th plot and 11th plot are parcelled from previous 3323 block 3rd plot 
and total construction area of the Company on the Land is protected during the partition. At 10 June 
2015, the construction permits for I)&� LQ� øVWDQEXO� KDYH� Eeen granted for the mixed use 
(office&retail) project. 

.RFDHOL�ùHNHUSÕQDU�Office Project 

ùHNHUSÕQDU�2IILFH�3URMHFW LV�UHJLVWHUHG�WR�ùHNHUSÕQDU�.RFDHOL�QHLJKERXUKRRG�ZLWK�����EORFN�DQG����
plot. It has place 15,652 m2. There is no restriction on the investment property. The Company has 
signed an agreement for the architectural design of office buildings on the land due to construction a 
building for banking operational centre and licence is received for the first and second zone as at 28 
August 2013 and 28 March 2014, respectively. First zone of the Project, Block A, has been 
completed and classified as a building. The fair value of the investment property of second zone of 
the Project, Block B, has been determined as TL 67,592,931 according to market value approach 
based on the report dated 7 December 2015 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by 
CMB. After the completion, the fair value of the property shall be TL 75,103,527. 

Operating leases 

The Company as lessor 

The Company has signed operating lease agreements with HalkBank, Koton, Halk Sigorta, Turkish 
7UHDVXU\� DQG� &HGD� $NDU\DNÕW� 7XUL]P� DV� OHVVRU� The future minimum lease payments as at 30 
September 2016 and 31 December 2015 under non-cancellable leases are as follows: 

 30 September 2016 31 December 2015 
   
Less than one year 39,327,556 31,442,378 
Between one and five years 110,223,031 107,116,477 
More than five years 54,561,598 46,780,737 
   
Total 204,112,185 185,339,592 
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11. TANGIBLE ASSETS 

 Movement schedule of tangible assets for the period from 1 January 2016 to 30 September 2016 are 
as follows: 

 1 January 2016 Additions Disposals 30 September 2016 
     
Cost     
Furniture and fixtures 1,133,691 29,619 (7,230) 1,156,080 
Leasehold improvements 661,327 -- -- 661,327 
 1,795,018 29,619 (7,230) 1,817,407 
     
Accumulated depreciation     
Furniture and fixtures (545,968) (151,312) 3,090 (694,190) 
Leasehold improvements (661,327) -- -- (661,327) 
 (1,207,295) (151,312) 3,090 (1,355,517) 
     
 587,723 (121,693) (4,140) 461,890 

For the interim period ended 30 September 2016 tangible assets amounting to TL 29,619 were 
acquired. 

As at 30 September 2016, total insurance on tangible assets amounting TL 1,190,000 (31 December 
2015: TL 1,400,000).  

Movement schedule of tangible assets for the period from 1 January 2015 to 30 September 2015 are 
as follows: 

 1 January 2015 Additions Disposals 30 September 2015 
     
Cost     
Furniture and fixtures 1,119,413 20,011 (3,728) 1,135,696 
Leasehold improvements 661,327 -- -- 661,327 
 1,780,740 20,011 (3,728) 1,797,023 
     
Accumulated depreciation     
Furniture and fixtures (385,003) (111,495) 1,534 (494,964) 
Leasehold improvements (480,342) (203,329) -- (683,671) 
 (865,345) (314,824) 1,534 (1,178,635) 
     
 915,395 (294,813) (2,194) 618,388 
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12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Movement schedule of intangible assets for the period from 1 January 2016 to 30 September 2016 
are as follows: 

 1 January 2016 Additions Disposals 30 September 2016 
     
Cost     
Other intangible assets 755,396 -- -- 755,396 
 755,396 -- -- 755,396 
     
Accumulated depreciation     
Other intangible assets (225,154) (160,183) -- (385,337) 
 (225,154) (160,183) -- (385,337) 
     
 530,242 (160,183) -- 370,059 

For the interim period ended 30 September 2016 no intangible assets were acquired. 

As at 30 September 2016, there is no insurance on intangible assets (31 December 2015: None).  

Movement schedule of intangible assets for the period from 1 January 2015 to 30 September 2015 
are as follows: 

 1 January 2015 Additions Disposals 30 September 2015 
     
Cost     
Other intangible assets 716,678 37,408 -- 754,086 
 716,678 37,408 -- 754,086 
     
Accumulated depreciation     
Other intangible assets (12,745) (158,723) -- (171,468) 
 (12,745) (158,723) -- (171,468) 
      
 703,933 (121,315) -- 582,618 
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13. LOANS AND BORROWINGS 

As at 30 September 2016 and 31 December 2015, financial borrowings are as follows: 

 
30 September 2016 31 December 2015 

   Short-term financial liabilities: 
  Short-term portion of long-term borrowings 3,396,733 3,396,983 

 
 

 Total short-term borrowings 3,396,733 3,396,983 

 
 

 Long-term borrowings:  
 Long-term bank loans 9,721,527 11,349,972 

 
   

Total long-term liabilities 9,721,527 11,349,972 

 
   

Total financial liabilities 13,118,260 14,746,955 

Financial debt repayment schedule is as follows: 

 
30 September 2016 31 December 2015 

   
Less than 1 year 3,396,733 3,396,983 
1±2 between years 3,072,929 3,072,510 
2±3 between years 2,779,998 2,779,748 
3±4 between years 2,514,306 2,514,760 
4±5 between years 1,354,294 2,274,149 
More than 5 years -- 708,805 
   
Total 13,118,260 14,746,955 

30 September 2016: 

Currency 
Nominal interest 

rate (%) Maturity Short-term Long-term 

  
 

  TL 8 2021 3,396,733 9,721,527 

  
   

Total 
 

 3,396,733 9,721,527 

31 December 2015: 

Currency 
Nominal interest 

rate (%) Maturity Short-term Long-term 

  
 

  TL 8 2021 3,396,983 11,349,972 

  
     

Total 
 

 3,396,983 11,349,972 
(*) 5HDO� HVWDWH� ORFDWHG� LQ� øVWDQEXO� %H\R÷OX� $VPDOÕPHVFLW� SXUFKDVHG� ZLWK� +DONEDQN� ORDQ� DW� ���

April 2011 (sold out 8 September 2011). 
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14. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

As at 30 September 2016, The Company is subject of four labour law suits, three consumer law 
suits, four tax law suit and one administrative suit which has been filed against the Company. A 
possible claim against the Company is amounting to TL 56,880. 

$FFRUGLQJ� WR� WKH�GHFLVLRQ�RI�&0%¶V�RQ���6HSWHPEHU������UHODWHG� WR� WKH�FRPPLWPHnts of publicly 
owned companies given to the guarantee 3rd SDUW\¶V�GHEWV��WKH�FRPPLWPHQWV�JLYHQ� 

For companies other than publicly owned associations and financial institutions;  

i) For their own corporate identities 

ii) In favour of fully consolidated associations 

iii) In favour of 3rd parties to continue their operations will not be limited. 

After the decision is published at the Platform of Public Enlightenment, publicly owned companies 
will not give commitments to real people or corporations other than mentioned at the bullets (i) and 
(ii) above or to third parties other than mentioned at the bullet (iii). If any commitments have already 
been given it will be reduced to nil until 31 December 2014. 

As at 30 September 2016 and 31 December 2015 commitments, pledges and mortagages (CPM) 
given are as follows: 

 30 September 2016 31 December 2015 

 
Original 
amount 

Book  
value 

Original 
amount 

Book  
value 

     
A. Commitments given in the name of own 
legal entity(1) 256,661,422 256,661,422 249,807,018 249,807,018 
B. Commitments given in favour of full 
consolidated subsidiaries -- -- -- -- 
C. Commitments given to guarantee the 
debts of third parties to continue their 
operations(2) 57,962,153 57,962,153 -- -- 
D. Other commitments given; -- -- -- -- 

- in favour of parent company -- -- -- -- 
- in favour of group companies other 
than mentioned in bullets B and C -- -- -- -- 
- in favour of third parties other than 
mentioned in bullets C -- -- -- -- 
     

Total 314,623,575 314,623,575 249,807,018 249,807,018 
(1)  The mortgages have been given to Halkbank related to loan used for the Halkbank Finance Tower amounting to TL 150,000,000 (31 

December 2015: TL 150,000,000) (Although loan agreement has been closed, mortgage has not been cancelled under general loan agreement 
between Halkbank and the Company) guarantee letter given for road accession commitment of and guarantee letter given for road accession 
commitment of Halkbank Finance Tower amounting to TL 97,504,542 (31 December 2015: TL 97,504,542), there is no guarantee letter 
given for electricity and gas supply cRPPLWPHQW�RI�(VNLúHKLU�3URMHFW (31 December 2015: TL 149,255 and TL 6,750). The mortgages have 
been given to customers related to loan used for (VNLúHKLU�SURMHFW�DQG�%DNÕUN|\�SURMHFW�amounting to TL 6,616,500 as guarantor, guarantee 
letter given for related VAT return amounting to TL 2,154,084 and Levent Hotel Project amounting to TL 314,035, related to notes 
receivables amounting to 36,763 TL (31 December 2015: TL 325,523), and guarantee letter given for Kocaeli project amounting to TL 
35,498 (31 December 2015: TL 538,448). 

(2) 7KH�EDODQFH�FRQVLVW�RI�FRPSDQ\¶V�JXDUDQWRU�EDODQFH�IRU�WKH�FXVWRPHUV��7KH�FRPSDQ\¶V�MRLQW�YHQWXUH�IRXQGDWLRQ�RI�+DON�*\R-9DNÕI�*\R�$GL�
2UWDNOÕ÷Õ�EHJXQ�SUH-sales of residential at Bizimtepe Aydos Project. If customers use loans from banks that the Company agreed , Company 
will be guarantor to to the customers. Halk Gyo-9DNÕI�*\R�$GL�2UWDNOÕ÷Õ� VLJQHG� WKH�JHQHUDO�JXDUDQWHH�DJUHHPHQW�ZLWK� WKH�DJUHHG�EDQNV�
amounting to TL 850,565,000 as of 30 September ������7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�LV�7/��������������7KH�SUe-sales of Halk Gyo-9DNÕI�
*\R�$GL�2UWDNOÕ÷Õ�DPRXQWLQJ�WR�7/�97,754,676 performed through the guarantee agreement. The risk of the Company is TL 48,877,338 due 
to the pre-sales through the guarantee agreements as of 30 September 2016. The proportion of other CPM and &RPSDQ\¶V�HTXLW\�LV����� % as 
of 30 September 2016. 

(3) 7KH�EDODQFH�FRQVLVW�RI�FRPSDQ\¶V�JXDUDQWRU�EDODQFH�IRU�WKH�FXVWRPHUV��7KH�FRPSDQ\¶V�MRLQW�YHQWXUH�IRXQGDWLRQ�RI�+DON�*\R-Erkonut Adi 
2UWDNOÕ÷Õ�EHJXQ�SUH-sales of UHVLGHQWLDO�DW�(U]XUXP�ùHKULVWDQ�3URMHFW��,I�FXVWRPHUV�XVH�ORDQV�IURP�EDQNV�WKDW�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DJUHHG���&RPSDQ\�
will be guarantor to to the customers. Halk Gyo-(UNRQXW� $GL� 2UWDNOÕ÷Õ� VLJQHG� WKH� JHQHUDO� JXDUDQWHH� DJUHHPHQW� ZLWK� WKH� DJUHHG� EDQNV�
amounting to TL 175,000,000 as of 30 September ������7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�LV�7/�87,500,000. The pre-sales of Halk Gyo-9DNÕI�
*\R�$GL�2UWDNOÕ÷Õ�DPRXQWLQJ�WR�7/�18,169,630 performed through the guarantee agreement. The risk of the Company is TL 9,084,815 due 
to the pre-sales through the guarantee agreements as of 30 September 2016. The proportion of other CPM and &RPSDQ\¶V�HTXLW\�LV���01 % as 
of 30 September 2016. 



HALK GA<5ø0(1.8/�<$7,5,0�257$./,ö,�$ù 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016 
($PRXQWV�H[SUHVVHG�LQ�7XUNLVK�/LUD��³T/´��XQOHVV�otherwise stated.) 
 

42 

14. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued) 

As at 30 September 2016 and 31 December 2015, the details of letter of guarantees are presented 
below: 

 
30 September 2016 31 December 2015 

   
+DOGÕ]�øQúDDW�2WRPRWLY�YH�7LF�/WG�ùWL(7) 19,450,000 19,560,000 
(U�.RQXW�øQú�7DDK��øQúDDW�0O]��1DNOL\H�YH�0DG��7LF�$�ù�(9) 13,650,000 -- 
'HGHPDQ�7XUL]P�<|QHWLPL�$ù(2) 4,000,000 12,710,400 
,OJD]ODU�øQúDDW�7LF��YH�6DQ��$ù(6) 2,400,000 2,751,981 
.�<DSÕ�*D\ULPHQNXO�*HOLúWLUPH�øQú��6DQ��YH�'Õú�7LF��$ù(1) 2,000,000 4,950,296 
6DSD]�2WHOFLOLN�7XUL]P�øQúDDW�6DQD\L�YH�7LFDUHW�$ù (8) 
4,766,400 -- 

1,500,000 4,766,400 
(QWHJUH�3URMH�<|QHWLP�'DQ��0�K�7LF��$ù(4) 693,158 884,000 
.RWRQ�0D÷D]DFÕOÕN�7HVNVWLO�6DQ�YH�7LF�$ù(5) 440,060 412,503 
<38�<DSL�3URMH�8\JXODPD�/WG��ùWL�(7) 368,100 368,100 
%LVNRQ�<DSÕ�$ù(3) 300,000 4,480,200 
0HJDSRO�0�KHQGLVOLN 7LF��$ù(1) 225,000 198,000 
0XWOX�dLOLQJLUR÷OX�0LPDUOLN�øQú��6DQ��YH�7LF��/WG��ùWL�(7) 160,500 160,500 
%RUXVDQ�0DNLQH�YH�*�o�6LVWHPOHUL�6DQ�YH�7LF��$ù(1) 95,400 303,143 
(ULFVVRQ�7HOHNRP�QLNDV\RQ�$ù(1) -- 3,145,824 
3URSODQ�3URMH�<|QHWLP�$ù(6) -- 73,800 
Other 502,831 626,119 
   
Total 45,785,049 55,391,266 
 (1) The Company has received letter of guarantee from the suppliers for architectural and construction activities within the 

scope of banking operations center project that being built on Kocaeli ùHNHUSÕQDU�/DQG� 
(2) The Company has received letter of guarantee from the suppliers for architectural and construction activities within the 

scope of Dedeman Otel Project. 
(3) 7KH�&RPSDQ\� KDV� UHFHLYHG� OHWWHU� RI� JXDUDQWHH� IURP� WKH� FRQWUDFWRU�%LVNRQ�<DSÕ�$ù IRU� WKH� ³/DQG�6DOH�of Revenue 

6KDULQJ´�SURMHFW� 
(4) The Company has received letter of guarantee from the suppliers for architectural and construction activities within the 

VFRSH�RI�øVWDQEXO�)LQDQFLDO�&HQWHU��,)&��3URMHFW� 
(5) Koton is the lessee of the Company. 
(6) The Company is the FRQWUDFWRU�FRPSDQ\�RI�(VNLúHKLU�3DQDURPD�3URMHFW� 
(7) Guarantee letter has been received from suppliers relating to architectural and construction businesses of Bizimtepe 

Aydos project. 
(8) Sapaz 2WHOFLOLN�7XUL]P�øQúDDW�6DQD\L�YH�7LFDUHW�$ù is a lessee of the Company. 
(9) The Company has received letter of gXDUDQWHH�UHODWHG�WR�(U]XUXP�ùHKULVWDQ�3URMHFW�  
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

As at 30 September 2016 and 31 December 2015, the details of employee benefits are presented 
below: 

Short-term liabilities 30 September 2016 31 December 2015 
   
Employee premium provision 394,095 500,019 
Vacation pay liability 227,080 219,205 
   
Total 621,175 719,224 
   
Long-term liabilities 30 September 2016 31 December 2015 
   
Provision for employee benefits 176,828 151,665 
   
Total 176,828 151,665 

In accordance with the existing labour code in Turkey, the Company is required to make lump-sum 
payments to employees whose employment is terminated due to retirement or for reasons other than 
resignation or misconduct. The Company calculated the severance pay liability for the retirement of 
its employees by discounting the future liabilities to their present values and reflected to the 
financials. 

TAS 19 ± Benefits for Employees Reserves Standard, requires the company to book the severance 
pay liability by developing actuarial valuation methods.  

Primary actuarial estimations used at the attached financial statements are stated below regarding 30 
September 2016 and 31 December 2015: 

 30 September 2016 31 December 2015 
   
Discount rate 4.72% 4.72% 
Expected salary/limit increase rate 6.00% 6.00% 
Estimated retirement turnover rate  96% 96% 
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16. PREPAID EXPENSES, OTHER CURRENT, NON-CURRENT ASSETS  

Prepaid expenses 

As at 30 September 2016 and 31 December 2015, the details of prepaid expenses are presented 
below:  

 30 September 2016 31 December 2015 
   
Prepaid insurance expenses 174,711 52,219 
Prepaid advertising and promotion expenses -- 30,260 
Other 15,891 63,773 
Total short term prepaid expenses 190,602 146,252 
   
Investment advances(*) 13,558,278 7,542,325 
Other 170,734 5,244 
Total long term prepaid expenses 13,729,012 7,547,569 
   
Total prepaid expenses 13,919,614 7,693,821 
(*) As at 30 September 2016, advances given consist of followings, due to the planned banking 

base Project on .RFDHOL�ùHNHUSÕQDU�/DQG amounting to TL 313,158, project administration firms 
due to the Sancaktepe Project advance amounting TL 4,264,520 and due to the Erzurum 
ùHKULVWDQ�3URMHFW�DGYDQFH�DPRXQWLQJ�7/�8,980,600.  

As at 31 December 2015, advances given consist of followings, due to the planned banking base 
3URMHFW�RQ�.RFDHOL�ùHNHUSÕQDU�/DQG�DPRXQWLQJ�WR�TL 680,927, due to the IFC Project advance 
amounting TL 411,496 is given to the contractor architecture and project administration firms, 
and project administration firms and due to the Sancaktepe Project advance amounting TL 
6,449,902. 

Other current assets 

As at 30 September 2016 and 31 December 2015, the details of other current assets are presented 
below: 

 30 September 2016 31 December 2015 
   
'HIHUUHG�YDOXH�DGGHG�WD[��³9$7´� 12,020,186 18,855,145 
Other current assets from related parties (Note 4) 725 214,083 
Deposits and guarantees given 57,677 126,014 
Advances given -- 3,088 
Other 621,729 594,355 
   
Total 12,700,317 19,792,685 

Other non-current assets 

As at 30 September 2016 and 31 December 2015, the details of other non-current assets are 
presented below: 

 30 September 2016 31 December 2015 
   
'HIHUUHG�YDOXH�DGGHG�WD[��³9$7´� 19,887,698 13,419,454 
   
Total 19,887,698 13,419,454 
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As at 30 September 2016, VAT receivable amounting to TL 19,887,698 caused by purchasing 
Sancaktepe land of Halk GYO-9DNÕI� *<2� $GL� 2UWDNOÕ÷Õ� and purchasing Erzurum land of Halk 
GYO-(UNRQXW�$GL�2UWDNOÕ÷Õ�DUH FODVVLILHG�WR�³RWKHU�QRQ-FXUUHQW�DVVHWV´� 
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17. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND OTHER EQUITY ITEMS 

17.1. Paid in capital 

As at 30 September 2016 and 31 December 2015, the issued and fully paid in capital of the Company 
is as follows: 

  30 September 2016 31 December 2015 
 Group Share % Amount Share % Amount 
      
Halkbank A 1.58 12,482,570 1.58 11,739,936 
Halkbank B 70.38 556,019,397 70.38 522,939,741 
+DON�<DWÕUÕP A 0.04 298,113 0.04 280,377 
+DON�)LQDQVDO�.LUDODPD�$ù A <0.01 1 <0.01 1 
Publicly held(*) B 28.00 221,199,919 28.00 208,039,945 
      
Pain in capital  100.00 790,000,000 100.00 743,000,000 
(*) Halkbank has 56,178,538 B group shares with the share rate of 7.11 on publicly held (31 

December 2015: 52,492,058).  

The Company shares are issued into two type of groups; Group A and Group B to names. The Group 
A shares have the right to vote for the election of members of the Board RI�'LUHFWRUV��³%2'´���2QH�
PRUH� PHPEHU� RI� KDOI� RI� %2'� PHPEHUV� DUH� HOHFWHG� WKURXJK� $� *URXS� VKDUHV¶� FDQGLGDWHV� DQG�
UHPDLQLQJ�PHPEHUV�DUH�HOHFWHG�WKURXJK�$�*URXS�DQG�%�*URXS�VKDUHV¶�FDQGLGDWHV�E\�*HQHUDO�%RDUG��
Capital increases in the Group A and B shares are issued as the Group A and B shares, respectively. 
However, if the BOD restricts the right of owning new shares for shareholders, new shares are issued 
as the Group B shares. 

The Company has been established with registered capital ceiling is TL 1,500,000,000 registered 
VKDUHV�RI�7/����7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V�QRPLQDO�FDSLWDO�YDOXH�LV�DPRXQWLQJ�WR�7/�790,000,000 and had been 
portioned to 790,000,000 shares. All capital value has been subscribed by the founders; amounting to 
TL 196,217,979 has been paid as cash, amounting to TL 127,500,000 has been paid as capital 
increase from reserves and amounting to TL 466,282,021 has been paid in kind by Halkbank which 
is the lead shareholder. 

Due to the numbered 49/110 Board of the Directors of the Company as at 15 August 2012, the 
Company increased the capital to TL 662,500,000. Increased capital of TL 185,500,000, 
185,500,000 unit shares, is publicly offered as at 13-15 February 2013. As at 20 June 2013, the 
Company increased its share capital by TL 11,138,704 from retained earnings. 

As at 5 June 2014, the Company increased its share capital by TL 24,261,296 from retained earnings. 

As at 11 June 2015, the Company increased its share capital to TL 743,000,000 by transferring TL 
45,100,000 from retained earnings to share capital. 

As at 25 May 2016, the Company increased its share capital to TL 790,000,000 by transferring TL 
47,000,000 from retained earnings to share capital. 
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17. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND OTHER EQUITY ITEMS (continued) 

17.2. Own shares acquired 

ThH�&RPSDQ\¶V�own shares acquired are accounted at their costs. The Company acquired its own 
shares having a notional amount of 22,271,814 (31 December 2015: 20,946,784 shares). 

As at 30 September 2016, 7KH�&RPSDQ\¶V own shares acquired detail as follows: 

Transaction 
Transaction 

date 
Notional 
amount 

Weighted 
average 

share price 
Transaction 

amount 
     
Repurchase share 26 February 2013 933,649 1.34 1,251,090 
Repurchase share 27 February 2013 736,571 1.34 987,004 
Repurchase share 28 February 2013 1,000,000 1.34 1,340,000 
Repurchase share 1 March 2013 2,297,269 1.32 3,021,922 
Repurchase share 5 March 2013 3,455,130 1.33 4,608,678 
Repurchase share 11 March 2013 457,867 1.32 604,384 
Repurchase share 12 March 2013 586,245 1.32 773,843 
Repurchase share 15 March 2013 2,000,000 1.32 2,640,000 
Repurchase share 21 March 2013 7,210,586 1.33 9,582,612 
Bonus shares 20 June 2013 314,024 0.00 -- 
Bonus shares 5 June 2014 683,977 0.00 -- 
Bonus shares 11 June 2015 1,271,466 0.00 -- 
Bonus shares 25 May 2016 1,325,030 0.00 -- 
     
Total own shares acquired 

 
22,271,814 1.11 24,809,533 

17.3. Share premiums 

The surplus of sales price over nominal value of shares amounted to TL 64,925,000 during the initial 
public offering on 13-15 February 2013 were accounted as share premium. Commission expenses, 
advertising expenses and consultancy expenses which are related with the initial public offering 
amounting to TL 8,847,688 are net off with share premium. Additionally, the difference of sales 
price over nominal value of own shares acquired amounted to TL 6,132,216 are net off with share 
premium. 

17.4. Restricted reserves 

The legal reserves consist of first and second reserves, in accordance with the Turkish Commercial 
Code. The first legal reserve appropriated out of the statutory profit at the rate of 5% until the total 
UHVHUYH�UHDFKHV�D�PD[LPXP�RI�����RI� WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�SDLG-in capital. The second legal reserve is 
DSSURSULDWHG�DW�WKH�UDWH�RI�����RI�DOO�GLVWULEXWLRQV�LQ�H[FHVV�RI����RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�SDLG-in capital. 
The first and second legal reserves are not available for distribution unless they exceed 50% of the 
share capital but may be used to absorb losses in the event that the general reserve is exhausted. 

In accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code, the Company has to appropriate restricted reserve 
equivalent of acquisition amount of the company's own shares acquired. The reserve for the 
company's own shares may be written back in the amount of any sold or destroyed shares valued at 
cost. 

As at 30 September 2016, the &RPSDQ\¶V�UHVWULFWHG�UHVHUYHV�DUH�OHJDO�UHVHUYHV�DQG�DPRXQWLQJ�WR�TL 
37,486,655 (31 December 2015: TL 32,833,600). 

17.5. Dividend 



HALK GA<5ø0(1.8/�<$7,5,0�257$./,ö,�$ù 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016 
($PRXQWV�H[SUHVVHG�LQ�7XUNLVK�/LUD��³T/´��XQOHVV�otherwise stated.) 
 

48 

As at 25 May 2016, dividend distributed to the shareholders is amounting to TL 5,423,899. Since the 
Company has written back its own shares in the amount of TL 152,912, net amount of dividend 
distributed to the shareholders is amounting to TL 5,270,987 (2015: TL 5,792,040). 



HALK GA<5ø0(1.8/�<$7,5,0�257$./,ö,�$ù 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016 
($PRXQWV�H[SUHVVHG�LQ�7XUNLVK�/LUD��³T/´��XQOHVV�otherwise stated.) 
 

49 

18. REVENUE AND COST OF SALES 

For the interim periods ended 30 September 2016 and 30 September 2015, revenue is as follows: 

  1 January ±  1 July -  1 January ±  1 July -  

  30 September  
2016 

30 September  
2016 

30 September  
2015 

30 September  
2015 

  
 

 
 

Income from sales of 
residence 18,325,847 5,498,905 24,861,690 7,351,456 
Rental income 35,856,727 11,521,543 26,696,876 10,931,976 
Total property income 54,182,574 17,020,448 51,558,566 18,283,432 

  
 

 
 

Income from financial assets 
at fair value through profit 
and loss -- -- 1,462,628 -- 
Interest income on deposits 4,747,901 1,743,041 438,872 92,236 
Interest income from 
financial assets available for 
sale financial assets -- -- -- -- 
Interest income from held to 
maturity financial assets -- -- -- -- 
Other incomes 44,631 3,878 121,996 -- 
Total income from debt 
securities  4,792,532 1,746,919 2,023,496 92,236 
     

 
 

Total revenue 58,975,106 18,767,367 53,582,062 18,375,668 

For the interim periods ended 30 September 2016 and 30 September 2015, cost of sales are as 
follows: 

  1 January ±  1 July -  1 January ±  1 July -  

  30 September  
2016 

30 September  
2016 

30 September  
2015 

30 September  
2015 

  
 

 
 

Cost of residence sales 9,764,806 2,911,791 7,740,680 3,146,390 
Depreciation expense 2,811,017 943,846 1,178,681 603,141 
Property tax expense 343,248 -- 320,679 -- 
Other 365,664 125,271 196,090 51,342 
Total cost of property 13,284,735 3,980,908 9,436,130 3,800,873 

  
 

 
 

Expense from financial assets 
at fair value through profit 
and loss -- -- 464,620 -- 
Commission expenses -- -- 40,878 12,520 
Total cost of borrowing 
instruments -- -- 505,498 12,520 
     

 
 

Total cost of sales 13,284,735 3,980,908 9,941,628 3,813,393 
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19. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

For the interim periods ended 30 September 2016 and 30 Septemer 2015, administrative expenses 
are as follows: 

  1 January ±  1 July -  1 January ±  1 July -  

  30 September  
2016 

30 September  
2016 

30 September  
2015 

30 September  
2015 

  
   

Personnel expenses 4,816,026 1,801,165 4,328,427 1,392,413 
Donation and aid expenses 3,550,000 3,550,000 -- -- 
Tax and duties expenses 473,558 70,445 531,049 57,571 
Advertisement expenses 404,005 265,133 256,828 75,058 
Rent expenses 355,309 119,886 333,577 112,798 
Consultancy expenses 345,213 92,815 328,042 85,995 
Outsourced service expenses 323,362 113,574 351,987 97,906 
Amortisation expenses  311,495 106,166 473,547 175,707 
Travel and rent a car 
expenses 262,298 92,921 199,178 53,269 
Office and IT related 
expenses 109,427 32,773 111,741 47,314 
Maintenance expenses 14,453 2,189 30,099 5,382 
Other  35,228 12,199 24,600 8,704 
  

 
   

Total 11,000,374 6,259,266 6,969,075 2,112,117 

Personnel expenses 

 1 January ±  1 July -  1 January ±  1 July -  

 
30 September  

2016 
30 September  

2016 
30 September  

2015 
30 September  

2015 
     
Salaries and wages 3,336,493 1,290,756 3,080,476 988,695 
Social security payroll tax 566,908 185,363 463,056 149,647 
Attendance fee 263,648 117,857 191,207 72,644 
Other 648,977 207,189 593,688 181,427 
     
Total 4,816,026 1,801,165 4,328,427 1,392,413 

20. MARKETING, SALES AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES 

For the interim periods ended 30 September 2016 and 30 September 2015, marketing, sales and 
distribution expenses are as follows: 

 1 January ±  1 July -  1 January ±  1 July -  

 
30 September  

2016 
30 September  

2016 
30 September  

2015 
30 September  

2015 
     
Commission expenses (*) 2,062,696 416,473 -- -- 
Advertisement expenses 1,436,217 98,640 --  
Personnel expenses 43,182 3,288 -- -- 
Tax and duties expenses 60,731 49,739 -- -- 
Other 616,872 281,417 -- -- 
      
Total 4,219,698 849,557 -- -- 
(*) Commission expenses comprise sales commissions related to Bizimtepe Aydos Project.  
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21. OTHER OPERATING INCOME / (EXPENSES) 

For the interim periods ended 30 September 2016 and 30 September 2015, other operating income / 
(expense) are as follows: 

 1 January ±  1 July -  1 January ±  1 July -  

 
30 September  

2016 
30 September  

2016 
30 September  

2015 
30 September  

2015 
     
Other operating income     
Foreign exchange gains 145,483 71,505 922,983 504,106 
     
Other operating expense     
Foreign exchange expenses (115,185) (38,740) (1,211,922) (730,309) 

22. FINANCIAL EXPENSES 

For the interim periods ended 30 September 2016 and 30 September 2015, financial expenses are as 
follows: 

 1 January ±  1 July -  1 January ±  1 July -  

 
30 September  

2016 
30 September  

2016 
30 September  

2015 
30 September  

2015 
     
Interest expenses 1,056,337 340,971 1,208,498 392,703 
Commission expenses 46,161 12,682 -- -- 
     
Total 1,102,498 353,653 1,208,498 392,703 

23. INCOME TAX 

According to Article 5/1(d) (4) of the Corporate Tax Law numbered 5520, the income of real estate 
investment trusts is exempt from Corporate Income Tax in Turkey. 
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24. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Earnings per share stated in statement of comprehensive income are calculated by dividing net income for 
WKH�SHULRG�E\�WKH�ZHLJKWHG�DYHUDJH�QXPEHU�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�VKDUHV�IRU�WKH�\HDU� 

There is no dilutive shares within the Company. 

 1 January ±  1 July -  1 January ±  1 July -  

 
30 September  

2016 
30 September  

2016 
30 September  

2015 
30 September  

2015 
     
Net profit for the period 29,398,099 7,356,748 35,173,922 11,831,252 
Weighted average number of 
shares 790,000,000 790,000,000 743,000,000 743,000,000 
Earnings per share (TL) 0.03721 0.00931 0.04734 0.01592 

25. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

7KLV�QRWH�SUHVHQWV�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DERXW�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�H[SRVXUH�WR�HDFK�RI�WKH�EHORZ�ULVNV�� WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk. The Company has exposure to the 
following risks from its operations: 

x credit risk, 

x liquidity risk, 

x market risk. 

25.1. Credit risk 

The ownership of the financial assets brings the risk of not meeting the obligations of the agreement of the 
counter party. These risks are controlled by credit evaluations and restricting the maximum exposure to a 
counter party. 

The Company has rented the substantial portion of its portfolio to main shareholder, group companies and 
governPHQW¶V� LQVWLWXWHV��*XDUDntee letters has been taken from the rest of its tenants and limits the credit 
risk. 
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25. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 

25.1. Credit risk (continued) 

As at 30 September 2016, credit risk exposure of financial assets is as follows: 

  Receivables     
  Trade receivables Other receivables     

 30 September 2016 
Related 
parties 

Other 
parties 

Related 
parties 

Other 
parties 

Bank 
deposits 

Financial 
Investments Other Total 

          

 

Exposure to maximum credit risk as at 
reporting date 
(A+B+C+D) -- 52,624,357 -- -- 75,371,002 -- -- 127,995,359 

A. 
 

Net carrying value of financial assets 
which are neither impaired nor overdue -- 52,624,357 -- -- 75,371,002 -- -- 127,995,359 

B. 
 

Net carrying value of financial assets 
which are overdue but not impaired -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 

C. Net carrying value of impaired assets -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
 - Past due (gross book value) -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
  - Impairment (-) -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 

 
- Covered portion of net book value 
(with letter of guarantee etc.) -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 

D. - Overdue (gross book value) -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
  - Impairment (-) -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 

 
- Covered portion of net book value 
(with letter of guarantee etc.) -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 

E. Off balance sheet items with credit risks -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 

The Company does not have any overdue but impaired financial assets as at 30 September 2016. 
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25. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 

25.1. Credit risk (continued) 

As at 31 December 2015, credit risk exposure of financial assets is as follows: 

  Receivables     
  Trade receivables Other receivables     

 31 December 2015 
Related 
parties 

Other 
parties 

Related 
parties 

Other 
parties 

Bank 
deposits 

Financial 
investments Other Total 

          

 

Exposure to maximum credit risk as at 
reporting date 
(A+B+C+D) 4,649,752 24,460,485 -- -- 16,436,458 -- -- 45,546,695 

A. 
 

Net carrying value of financial assets 
which are neither impaired nor overdue 4,649,752 24,460,485 -- -- 16,436,458 -- -- 45,546,695 

B. 
 

Net carrying value of financial assets 
which are overdue but not impaired -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 

C. Net carrying value of impaired assets -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
 - Past due (gross book value) -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
  - Impairment (-) -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 

 
- Covered portion of net book value 
(with letter of guarantee etc.) -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 

D. - Overdue (gross book value) -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
  - Impairment (-) -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 

 
- Covered portion of net book value 
(with letter of guarantee etc.) -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 

E. Off balance sheet items with credit risks -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 

The Company does not have any overdue but impaired financial assets as at 31 December 2015. 
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25. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
(continued) 

25.2. Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the inability of the Company to match the net funding requirements with sufficient liquidity. 

7KH� IROORZLQJ� WDEOH� SUHVHQWV� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� ILQDQFLDO� OLDELOLWLHV� LQFOXGLQJ� SD\PHQWV� DFFRUGLQJ� WR� WKHLU�
remaining contractual maturities: 

Contractual maturities      

30 September 2016 
Carrying  

value 

Total of 
contractual 

cash flows 
Up to 3 
months 

3 months 
to 1 year 

1 year to 5 
years 

More than 
5 years 

       
Non-derivative financial liabilities      
Loans and borrowings 13,118,260 16,408,523 895,010 2,685,031 12,828,482 -- 
Trade payables 275,673 275,673 275,673 -- -- -- 
Total 13,393,933 16,684,196 1,170,683 2,685,031 12,828,482 -- 
 
Contractual maturities      

31 December 2015 
Carrying  

value 

Total of 
contractual 

cash flows 
Up to 3 
months 

3 months 
to 1 year 

1 year to 5 
years 

More than 
5 years 

       
Non-derivative financial liabilities      
Loans and borrowings 14,746,955 19,093,554 895,010 2,685,031 14,320,167 1,193,346 
Trade payables 1,841,360 1,841,360 1,841,360 -- -- -- 
Total 16,588,315 20,934,914 2,736,370 2,685,031 14,320,167 1,193,346 
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25. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
(continued) 

25.3. Market risk 

The Company is exposed to various market risks, including the effects of changes in exchange rates, 
interest rates, equity prices and credit spreads. 

The total risk management program of the Company focuses on the unpredictability of the financial 
markets and aims at reducing the potential negative effects on the &RPSDQ\¶V�ILQDQFLDO�SHUIRUPDQFH� 

Foreign currency risk 

Exchange risk comprises the effects arising from exchange movements in the event foreign currency 
assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items are owned. The Company is exposed to foreign 
currency ULVN� UHJDUGLQJ� WKH� VDOH� RI� UHVLGHQWLDO� XQLWV� WR� IRUHLJQ� FXVWRPHUV� DW� %DNÕUN|\� 3URMHFW� DV�
generally US 'ROODU��³86'´��ERQGV�DQG�FKHFNV� 
As at 30 September 2016 and 31 December 2015, foreign currency assets and liabilities are as 
follows: 

 
30 September 2016 

(Balance TL) 
31 December 2015 

(Balance TL) 
   
Total foreign currency assets 922,842 889,359 
Total foreign currency liabilities (8,758) (916) 
    
Net exposure 914,084 888,443 
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25. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
(continued) 

25.3. Market risk (continued) 

Foreign currency risk (continued) 
 30 September 2016 31 December 2015 
         

 

TL 
(functional 

currency) USD EURO GBP 

TL  
(functional 

currency) USD EURO GBP 
         
1. Trade receivables 653,211 218,035 -- -- 889,359 305,874 -- -- 
2a. Monetary financial assets 269,631 90,000 -- -- -- -- -- -- 
2b. Non-monetary financial assets -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
3. Other -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
4. CURRENT ASSETS 922,842 308,035 -- -- 889,359 305,874 -- -- 
5. Trade receivables -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
6a. Monetary financial assets -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
6b. Non-monetary financial assets -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
7. Other -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
8. NON-CURRENT ASSETS -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
         
9. TOTAL ASSETS 922,842 308,035 -- -- 889,359 305,874 -- -- 
         
10. Trade payables 7,814 -- 2,325 -- -- -- -- -- 
11. Financial liabilities -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
12a. Monetary other liabilities -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
12b. Non-monetary liabilities 944 315 -- -- 916 315 -- -- 
13. Short-term liabilities 8,758 315 2,325 -- 916 315 -- -- 
14. Trade payables -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
15. Financial liabilities -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
16a. Financial liabilities -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
16b. Non-monetary liabilities -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
17. Long-term liabilities -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
         
18. TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,758 315 2,325 -- 916 315 -- -- 
         
19. Off balance sheet derivatives net 
asset/liability position(19a-19b)     -- -- -- -- 
19a Active off balance sheet 
derivative(foreign currency) -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
19b. Passive off balance sheet 
derivative(foreign currency)     -- -- -- -- 
20. Net foreign currency asset liability 
position  914,084 307,720 (2,325) -- 888,443 305,559 -- -- 
21. Monetary accounts net foreign 
currency asset/liabilities position 
(1+2a+5+6a-10-11-12a-14-15-16a) 915,028 308,035 (2,325) -- 888,443 305,559 -- -- 
22. Fair value of financial assets used for 
foreign currency hedge -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
23. Hedged foreign currency assets 
amount -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
24. Hedged foreign currency liabilities 
amount -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 
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25. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 

25.3. Market risk (continued) 

Foreign currency risk (continued) 

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis: 

30 September 2016 Profit/(loss) 6KDUHKROGHU¶V�equity 

 
Devaluation of 

TL 
Evaluation  

of TL 
Devaluation of 

TL 
Evaluation of 

TL 
     
10% change in USD against TL;     
1-USD net assets/(liabilities) 92,284 (92,284) 92,284 (92,284) 
2-USD proportion hedged from changes (-) -- -- -- -- 
3-USD net effect (1+ 2) 92,284 (92,284) 92,284 (92,284) 
     
10% change in EURO against TL;     
4-EURO net assets/(liabilities) (781) 781 (781) 781 
5-EURO proportion hedged from changes (-) -- -- -- -- 
6-EURO net effect (4+ 5) (781) 781 (781) 781 
     
10% change in GBP against TL;     
7-GBP net assets/(liabilities) -- -- -- -- 
8-GBP proportion hedged from changes (-) -- -- -- -- 
9-GBP net effect (7+ 8) -- -- -- -- 
     
Total (3+6+9) 91,503 (91,503) 91,503 (91,503) 

 
30 September 2015 Profit/(loss) 6KDUHKROGHU¶V�Hquity 

  
Devaluation of 

TL 
Evaluation of 

TL 
Devaluation of 

TL 
Evaluation of 

TL 
   

  

10% change in USD against TL;     
1-USD net assets/(liabilities) 122,259 (122,259) 122,259 (122,259) 
2-USD proportion hedged from changes (-) -- -- -- -- 
3-USD net effect (1+ 2) 122,259 (122,259) 122,259 (122,259) 
     
10% change in EURO against TL;     
4-EURO net assets/(liabilities) (795) 795 (795) 795 
5-EURO proportion hedged from changes (-) -- -- -- -- 
6-EURO net effect (4+ 5) (795) 795 (795) 795 
     
10% change in GBP against TL;     
7-GBP net assets/(liabilities) -- -- -- -- 
8-GBP proportion hedged from changes (-) -- -- -- -- 
9-GBP net effect (7+ 8) -- -- -- -- 
     
Total (3+6+9) 121,464 (121,464) 121,464 (121,464) 
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25. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 

25.3. Market risk (continued) 

Interest rate risk 

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk due to interest bearing assets and liabilities. 

The table below shows the financial instruments sensitive to interest rates as at 30 September 2016 
and 31 December 2015: 

 30 September 2016 31 December 2015 
   
Financial instruments with fixed interest rates   
Financial assets 72,219,935 15,245,167 
Cash and cash equivalents 72,219,935 15,245,167 
-Time deposits 72,219,935 15,245,167 
   
Financial liabilities   
Loans and borrowings 13,118,260 14,746,955 

Weighted interest rates which are applied to financial instruments as at 30 September 2016 and 31 
December 2015 are as follows: 

 30 September 2016 31 December 2015 
   
Financial instruments   
Time deposits ±TL 11.07% 11.29% 
Loans and borrowings-TL 8.00% 8.00% 
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25. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 

25.4. Capital management 

The Company manages capital by using effective portfolio management to reduce the risk of 
investment to minimum. The main objectives of the Company are to continue operations with 
generating revenue, to secure the benefits of the shareholders, cost of capital and to continue the 
optimum level of net liabilities/equity and to achieve the efficient capital structure continuity. 

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The fair value of an asset is the amount at which that asset could be bought or sold in a current 
transaction between willing parties. 

$�QXPEHU� RI� WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V� DFFRXQWLQJ� SROLFLHV� DQG�GLVFORVXUHV� UHTXLUH� the determination of fair 
value for financial assets and liabilities. 

Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the 
following methods. When applicable, further information about the assumptions made in 
determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability. 

Following assumptions and methods are used to estimate fair value of financial instruments, if fair 
values are applicable. 

Financial assets 

Financial investments, recognised in financial statements are reflected at fair values. The Company 
assumes that the carrying values of the cash and cash equivalents are close to their fair value because 
of their short-term nature. 

Trade receivables 

As at 30 September 2016 and 31 December 2015, fair value of the long term trade receivables are 
FRPSXWHG�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�GHIDXOW�LQWHUHVW�RQ�FRQtracts for trade receivable as at reporting 
date. The carrying values of short-term trade receivables are assumed to be close to their fair values 
due to their short term nature. 

Financial liabilities 

Loans and borrowings 

As at 30 September 2016 and 31 December 2015, the fair value of loans and borrowings are 
FDOFXODWHG�E\�XVLQJ�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�ERUURZLQJ rate at the reporting date. 

Trade and other payables 

The Company assumes that the carrying values of the trade payables are close to their fair value 
because of their short-term nature. 

 



HALK GA<5ø0(1.8/�<$7,5,0�257$./,ö,�$ù 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016 
($PRXQWV�H[SUHVVHG�LQ�7XUNLVK�/LUD��³T/´��XQOHVV�otherwise stated.) 
 

61 

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 

Fair value of financial instruments 

Except assets and liabilities SUHVHQWHG�EHORZ�� WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�PDQDJHPHQW� WKRXJKW� WKDW� UHFRJQLVHG�
amounts of financial assets and liabilities in financial statements are close to fair values. 

The table below represents comparison of fair value and recorded amount of financial instruments. 

  30 September 2016 31 December 2015 

 Note 
Carrying 

value 
Fair  

value 
Carrying 

value 
Fair  

value 
      
Financial assets      
Trade receivables 7 52,624,357 48,752,469 29,110,237 28,929,857 
      
Financial liabilities      
Loans and borrowings 13 13,118,260 13,057,989 14,746,955 14,669,334 

Classification of fair value measurement 

TFRS 7 ± Financial Instruments requires the classification of fair value measurements into a fair 
value hierarchy by reference to the observability and significance of the inputs used in measuring fair 
value of financial instruments measured at fair value to be disclosed. This classification basically 
relies on whether the relevant inputs are observable or not. Observable inputs refer to the use of 
market data obtained from independent sources, whereas unobservable inputs refer to the use of 
predictions and assumptions about the market made by the Company. 

This distinction brings about a fair value measurement classification generally as follows: 

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities; 

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that 
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices). 

Level 3: Fair value measurements using inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on 
observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

Classification requires using observable market data if possible. 

Classification of fair value measurement  

There is no asset and liabilities which are measured at fair value in the financials. 

27. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

None. 
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APPENDIX I-CONTROL OF COMPLIANCE WITH RESTRICTIONS ON THE 
INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO 

The information contained herein, is summary information derived from the financial statements 
DFFRUGLQJ� WR� ³&RPPXQLTXp� RQ� )LQDQFLDO� 5HSRUWLQJ� in Capital Market´ of CMB and these 
information has been prepared in accordance with the control of portfolio limit compliance of 
&0%¶V� ³&RPPXQLTXp� RQ� 3ULQFLSles Regarding Real Estate Investment Trusts´, published in the 
Official Gazette numbered 28660 and III-48.1. In addition, as indicated in Note 1, information in the 
financial statement of the Company is unconsolidated data due to the Company has no subsidiary or 
joint venture. 

As at 30 September 2016, the Company complied with the restrictions that stated on the paragraph 
³a, b, c, o and d´�RI���th substance, 22nd and 38th VXEVWDQFH�RI�&0%¶V�³&RPPXQLTXp�RQ�3ULQFLSOHV�
Regarding Real Estate Investment Trusts´� published in the Official Gazette numbered 28660 and III-
48.1 and the ratios related with these restrictions is shown below (31 December 2015: There is no 
incompliance). 

 
Financial statement primary accounts items Regulations 

30 September 
2016 (TL) 

31 December 
2015 (TL) 

   
  A Monetary and capital market instruments Serial: III-48.1, Article 24/(b) 75,371,002 16,436,458 

B Real estates, based on real estates, rights based 
on real estates Serial: III-48.1, Article 24/(a) 928,130,939 887,066,081 

C Subsidiaries Serial: III-48.1, Article 24/(b) -- -- 
 Due from related parties (non-trade) Serial: III-48.1, Article 23/(f) -- -- 
 Other assets  100,592,003 71,213,238 
D Total assets Serial: III-48.1, Article 3/(k) 1,104,093,944 974,715,777 
E Loans and borrowings Serial: III-48.1, Article 31 13,118,260 14,746,955 
F Other financial liabilities Serial: III-48.1, Article 31 -- -- 
G Financial leasing obligation Serial: III-48.1, Article 31 -- -- 
H Due to related parties (non-trade) Serial: III-48.1, Article 23/(f) -- -- 
ø Equity Serial: III-48.1, Article 31 903,575,978 879,448,866 
 Other liabilities  187,399,706 80,519,956 
D Total liabilities and equity Serial: III-48.1, Article 3/(k) 1,104,093,944 974,715,777 
 

Other financial information Regulations 
30 September 

2016 (TL) 
31 December 

 2015 (TL) 
A1 Financial markets instruments held for three 

years payment of real estates Serial: III-48.1, Article 24/(b) -- -- 
A2 Time deposit/ demand deposit/ TL / foreign 

currency Serial: III-48.1, Article 24/(d) 74,971,187 15,638,727 
A3 Foreign capital market instruments Serial: III-48.1, Article 24/(d) -- -- 
B1 Foreign real estates, projects, based on real 

estates Serial: III-48.1, Article 24/(d) -- -- 
B2 Idle land Serial: III-48.1, Article 24/(c) -- -- 
C1 Foreign Subsidiaries (operating companies) Serial: III-48.1, Article 24/(d) -- -- 
C2 Subsidiaries (operating companies) Serial: III-48.1, Article 28 -- -- 
J Non-cash loans Serial: III-48.1, Article 31 164,623,575 99,807,018 
K Mortgage amounts on land that project to be 

developed and the ownership does not 
belong the partnership Serial: III-48.1, Article 22/(e) -- -- 
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APPENDIX I-CONTROL OF COMPLIANCE WITH RESTRICTIONS ON THE INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued) 
 

Portfolio Restrictions Regulations Calculation Min/Max Rate 
30 September 2016  

(TL) 
31 December 2015 

(TL) 
 

   
 

 
 

1 Mortgage Amounts on Land that Project to be Developed and the Ownership Does Not 
Belong the Partnership Serial: III-48.1, Article22/(e) K/D Maximum %10 -- -- 

2 Monetary and Capital Market Instruments Serial: III-48.1, Article24/(a),(b) (B+A1)/D Minimum %51 84.06% 91.01% 
3 Real estates, based on Real Estates, Rights based on Real Estates Serial: III-48.1, Article24/(b) (A+C-A1)/D Maximum %49 6.83% 1.69% 
4 Monetary and Capital Market Instruments Serial: III-48.1, Article24/(d) (A3+B1+C1)/D Maximum %49 -- -- 
5 Idle Land Serial: III-48.1, Article24/(c) B2/D Maximum %20 -- -- 
6 Subsidiaries (Operating Companies) Serial: III-48.1, Article28 C2/D Maximum %10 -- -- 
7 Borrowing Limit Serial: III-48.1, Article31 �(�)�*�+�-��ø Maximum %500 19.67% 13.03% 
8 Time Deposit/ Demand Deposit/ TL / Foreign Currency  Serial: III-48.1, Article24/(b)  (A2-A1)/D Maximum %10 6.79% 1.60% 
 


